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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N EH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2013/14 decreased to
HK$1,074,132,000 (2012/13: HK$1,333,068,000) and the overall net
profit was HK$ 11,199,000 (2012/13: HK$55,746,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The overall net profit for the Group dropped by 80% to HK$11,199,000
(2012/13: HK$55,746,000) while the result of our garment business
recorded an operating loss of HK$8,499,000 (2012/13: a gain of
HK$39,273,000). The loss of our core business was offset by the profits

earned from our investments in the joint ventures in Wuxi.

Our garment manufacturing plants in Guigang (Guangxi) and Panyu
(Guangzhou) China had incurred huge losses. The unsatisfactory results
were mainly attributed to the escalating costs of manufacturing and
a further provision of redundancy cost during the year. In order to
reduce losses in the coming year, the management will continue to
cut expenses, maximize resources, reduce waste and further layoff of
workers. It is hoped that with all these measures, the results for the

coming year would be drastically improved.

In Bangladesh, our factory — Lavender Garment Limited had recorded
minimal gain for the year under review. The management expects
breakeven results for the year to come due to the increase of
manufacturing costs from wage hike and compliance with much stricter
safety requirements. Our joint venture garment factory in Myanmar
manufacturing mainly casual and dress shirts will start production from
mid August 2014. We expect a start-up loss for this factory due to the
short financial period to be taken into account. Our investments in the
joint ventures in Wuxi had a profitable year but the management expects
the results to be only breakeven for next year due to the drop in cotton

prices and down turn in demand for high end yarn.

SEXE

AEEz—E—=  —NEELEBERIE
1,074,132,0008 T (= E—= / —=FF :
1,333,068,0007 7T) R EEARI A 11,199,000
BT (ZT—=, —=%F[E :55746,000/8
JT) e

EBOERRE

AEBE 2 ERAR T #K80%E11,199,000
B (ZZE—=/— =% :55746,000/&
) MAEBEZHKEBERZARELE
&5158,499,0008 T (= —= —=FE :
& F139,273,0008 7T) o REBZOEK 2B
BHASENESCECECRERDN
il A o

AEBRTEEAESBETREMNES 2K
REGETHREEGRAEE - FERNER
FTEARAFEARERFZAUKE -
THBERNETERERS - BHDRF
2R EEESSRERERX  &AR
EERER BIRERE-SRIT
ABE - FEETHERRE  REZEE
SREEYRE-

AEBRZ MNP A T HlLavender Garment
Limited » REIEFEENESEHMFBE - &
BEEEH FARSIEREAESTEARE
ZEEHREMBHRBERET LA REZ
HKERARXFE AEEEHAG2ZHK
BEIREBR-_Z2-—NFENAPERAL
B ZIRNDITEREEREREY  K&EEH
FEH - ZRENMBUERRBERE - BEZIEAK
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ZEBERBKERREZTE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

OUTLOOK

For the coming year, the management expects our core garment
business to improve due to slight recovery in the U.S. and EU markets
plus the huge reduction in manufacturing costs in China after the
substantial layoff of workers in the year under review. Despite the
above, the management believes that our garment business will continue

to be difficult in the long run.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their hard work and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2014 was
HK$1,074,132,000 compared with HK$1,333,068,000 of the year before,
and the Group’s profit for the year was HK$11,199,000 compared with
previous year’s HK$55,746,000.

GARMENT BUSINESS

Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited are
the two names that we use to operate our garment business. We
manufacture a wide variety of products that include men’s and ladies’
shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, T-shirts, jackets and knitted
outerwear, etc. Hong Kong is our Group’s headquarters that handles all
garment businesses including manufacturing, trading and sourcing. We
have factories in China (Guigang and Panyu), Bangladesh and Myanmar.
Besides Hong Kong and places where we have factories, we also
have offices in many parts of China (Dongguan, Hangzhou, Wuxi and
Shanghai). These offices not only provide supports to our own factories,
but also monitor and liaise with our subcontractors and business

partners in the areas.

Our garment manufacturing operation in China remains difficult. We
now have two factories in Guigang (Guangxi, China) which produce
pants, shorts and a small amount of knitted polo shirts. In Panyu we are
still keeping a unit for most of our knitted polo shirts business. All the
adverse factors such as lack of sewing workers, uneven spread of orders,
increase of manufacturing costs and government taxes etc. continue
to affect our productions and profit margins. Through tight control of
expenses and further layoffs, the management hopes that the results for

the coming year will drastically improve.

The results of our factory in Bangladesh — Lavender Garment Limited
had recorded minimal gain for the year under review. The lesser
than expected profits was caused by extra freight costs from delayed
shipments after the turmoil happened last year and the increase of
minimum wages by 77% in December 2013. With the collapse of a
factory building in April 2013, all factories are required to comply
with the strict building, electrical and fire safety codes. This will add
extra labour and financial costs to the company, and coupled with the
increase of our manufacturing costs due to the minimum wage hike, the

management expects a breakeven result for the year to come.

ReXE

AEEBRE-_ZE-—NEF=A=+—HLHF
E2E¥EA1,074132,0008 T MEF
2 & ¥ 51,333,06800008 0 R AFEE
AREBERNBE1,199,0008 7T - B EFEH
55,746,000 JT °

FAEEFEUARIRRERQAAREESH
EERVAZEERERREY - KXEH
TEZEMBEZ  BEBIRzLMmY &
& > JE4E - polofl ~ T » KKK EHBINE
£ REFCBNUNESR  BEEREME
BIRER - BRERE - EEZRRE - A&H
EHRE (BEBRER)  &ZMAKAER

IR - BREBRAEERE IR 2MHTE I
AEBTEFEZELS (RE M- 8
HBREB)RERER - ZEMEETER
FEERG2IBRERZE BEEEH
o B8 2 h0 T B2 SE TS K4 DA BRI S g 4% o

EMETENRRREEBSENRNE -
AEBERNETREASEHHEAME L
B EERE - EERDE# Bipoloi - 7£
R FAEENRE-—EEESENL 8EKX
B & HipoloM%EH - FIEAFEZE (40
RERRETA ~ FTED A1 RERAR L
FRARBARIES) BELEELEB L
EREBEANE ZEEFEFHMAIRE-
TEBAF EEBFERF2EEALS
BEYE-

AEBR & MNH A T MLavender Garment
Limited » K@ BEF B A SRS EE TR o & A
BEBALTTHREFREDEACRELTE
NERFERZBANEGRAUARZETE
R-B-—=F+ZREM7I7%HEH - £ —1&E
IBRAER=-Z=—Z=ZFWNB4B%E B
ITHEYEFTEBRNESEY - EHRHER
Z2FA - EHREHADAEMEIN 2 A
IRMBERET BMLRESREERIEEHK
AEBRERKNLA  EEERE  REF
REBBBBZFE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

To combat the ever increasing production costs in China and
Bangladesh, we have set up a joint venture factory in Myanmar which will
begin production from mid August 2014. This factory is catered for the
production of casual and dress shirts. Garment industry in Myanmar, in
general, is thriving due to duty free to EU, elimination of sanction from
the U.S. and the unrests in neighboring countries such as Bangladesh
and Vietnam. As a result, the manufacturing costs have risen 10% and a
shortage of labour is inevitable. The management expects a loss for the

coming year due to the short accounting period.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is a joint venture that owns several textiles related
companies in Wuxi, China (“Wuxi Group”). The core business of the
Wuxi Group is the production of medium range to high end yarns.
The Group benefited from lower cost cotton bought in previous years
and recorded remarkable profits for the first half of the year under
review. In the second half of the year the decrease in cotton prices and
reduce in demand of high end yarns caused a substantial decrease in our
profitability. The management will closely monitor the subsequent effects
and make strategic changes accordingly. The Group expects a breakeven

result for the year to come.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2014, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$275,070,000 (2013: HK$270,015,000). As at 31 March
2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any short term borrowings and

long term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and bank
balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Euros, Pound Sterling or Renminbi, the Group may
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables
and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies against the
exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant. As at 31
March 2014, the Group has foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of HK$79,000, recognised as derivative
financial liabilities (2013: HK$52,000, recognised as derivative financial

assets).

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

PLEDGE OF ASSETS | v, REBER
As at 31 March 2014, none of the assets of the Group was pledged. R-B-—NE=A=+—H0 > KREBTE

DAEMEEEERR -

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES =~ @®ERFMER ...
As at 3| March 2014, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding R-ZEBE—MNME=/A=+—0 BEZELAA
its associates and joint ventures, employed approximately 4,400 REeEgtEN  AEEB (ERFREHMBEAT)
employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference to EAN4408 EE - FTMAESTIZHBET
employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. ZRIENTEEE2HEKEMETE o It
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund o REBAEEREFERELT  AESE
scheme, medical insurance and training to staff. 2 BEREREIE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, provision of processing services and
rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2014 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 34 to 149.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements. These movements
include the automatic inclusion of the amounts standing to the share
premium account and the capital redemption reserve in share capital
as from 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule Il to
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the

transition to the no-par value regime.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2014 of HK$11,920,000 (2013:
HK$53,082,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in

reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3
cents (2013: HK5 cents) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2014.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in

note |3 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

HK$30,000 (2013: HK$20,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the

financial year is as follows:

BEEEFAZEBFBERNTBHREM
F13 0

BEBE

REBFRAZEZEZBRA30,0008 T (==
— =% :20,000/87T) °

TEEFFRETEHRER

REABHFERNETEEFRHEEBEELE
B BEERERRBEINAOT ¢

Percentage of the Group’s total

EAREBEARE
2014 2013
—E—gF —E-=fF
Sales  Purchases Sales Purchases
HE R HE RE
The largest customer BAREF 15% 19%
Five largest customers in BEKRKEFEAS
aggregate 44% 47%
The largest supplier BRAMERS 7% 7%
Five largest suppliers in BREARMHEFS
25% 23%

aggregate

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.

BES RECHBATREARR (RE
EERAERARRRASRU LF) EARF
EEMEEALEES EHETERFRM
FE 2 et o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS

The present directors of the Company are listed on page 2 to the annual

report.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Mr. Leung Hok
Lim and Mr. Lin Keping, will retire from the Board by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 3|
to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(@) As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“the Model Code”) and which were required to be entered
in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO

were as follows:

EscROES

RZB-—ME=ZA=+—H 427
FESRBECHBEALRAQAY
EEE AT (REFRBEGHRS ([F
FAEHI]) EXVEBZEE) 2B 15 18
BROREFPEEREZFIHRAE
XVEBETR8D I~ L AT EBELT
BERGEZESH ((BEFA] 2R
EENERAARBEIF2EER B
B (BREHEEREZERFRIARER
RIEREERE2EEZRAR) WA
BRRBEZZERHEINKEEZE
mMzEERAENT :

Number of ordinary shares

ZERROHE

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of director EERR B AR RIRRE = AR ER Hih
Chan Sui Kau R 3 BR 4,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 0}
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk Z=E 486,102 8,367,130 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Kee R 7K A 8,589,624 208,356 - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing To BR 7K E 12,042,054 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel PR oK 22 6,089,244 250,000 3,293,080 (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBRNE 4,369,816 524,000 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Man 2B 3,355,442 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
So Ying Woon, Alan BRpEE 12,000 - - -
Leung Hok Lim RER - - - -
Lin Keping M F - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael Jiokisk <3 - - - -
Choi Ting Ki BEHR - - - -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &4 BA w
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

(a) (continued)

Notes:

(i) 48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan

Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

(i) 1,577,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan Suk Man and other members
of the Chan Family.

(iii) 2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan Family.

(b) Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 March 2014, none of the directors
or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or any interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 #§

@

(b)

(A&

UGS

() & 48,032,240 A A TR T &
Chan Family Investment Corporation
Led. (HBRIGERESE - RAKELE
BRAKAESEE  RACERE - BRKRE
£ BARREZETRIARAIZER
HiREKREREER) RAKBEL
BAEA -

(i) &H1,577,388R A QAT KA I H
Hearty Development Limitedi$H ° #%
DNAARKESLSE BRKEEE R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests
In Shares” in respect of the directors, the following shareholder had
interests in 5% or more of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
as at 3| March 2014, according to the register of interests and short
positions required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

TERRREMALTESR

A—E-WF=ZA=+—H BRELAIE
BzRER ITRE 2SN RERS
ROIEBAFREFE2ROBERKEE
AT FEARAEBRTERRERN
5% EREE ZIRRCBUT ¢

Number of Percentage of
ordinary ordinary shares

shares held in issue

Name of Capacity BFEEBER HERITEER

shareholder REERE BEME KR #EE RO BEDL

Guangzhou Textiles Industry & EMHETE Beneficial owner 15,814,000 7.65%
Trade Holdings Ltd. KEEERALA BEREBA (note)
(Htaz)

Note:  The shares were directly held by Yue Xiu Textiles Co., Ltd., a 100%
owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Textiles Industry & Trade Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the

Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579
shares. On |9 September 2006, it was approved in the annual general
meeting that the maximum number of options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing

10% of the total number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

M ROBENGHEIECXEBEARAA
ZEERANBARBEHERERD
RAEEER -

BREMESN  ARRAEEANSEME M
ARBERERFEROFBAMRAEFEZ
BMEES -

BREE

R-ZZBENFAA=+=H AARKM
BRESTE ((BRESTED  BRESE
B-—EEN BEE-Z-NEAAZ=+Z=
HEIH - RIBBRETE 2GR AQTT
MAEEEEREERIMEERSEHE
REBRE  URBARABRS  HRIERE
RAETERADAEMEAERENBR
HeMEBRERTER  BHLBETZA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst other related party transactions in note 31(a)
to the financial statements. As certain directors and their associates are
collectively the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) and the
Group, the related party transactions constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Of these, sales of garment products to YGMT Group and
rental income received and receivable from YGMT Group constitute the
connected transactions to be disclosed as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Other transactions with YGMT Group are exempt

from the disclosure requirements in Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these

transactions were entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
I4A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note

24 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix |4
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises four

independent non-executive directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages I5] to 152 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

shares in issue as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing

shareholder value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix |4 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the financial year ended 31 March 2014, except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.] of the Code, pursuant to which the non-
executive directors of the Company should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive directors of Company
are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election requirements at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s

articles of association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and
borrowings, accounting and dividends policies. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Company to the management of the Group
and also instructs the management to implement the Board’s decisions
and resolutions. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee

and the Nomination Committee.

The Board comprises eight executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. The number of independent non-executive
directors represents at least one-third of the Board in accordance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major

decisions of the Group.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors as well as
relationships between them are set out in the section of “Directors and

Management”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee had held 4, 3, 2 and | meetings respectively in

the year under review.

The attendance at the Board and respective Board committees meetings

held in the year ended 3| March 2014 are as follows:

A\
HEE FHEEY FHEESGRELE
BEER @ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%ﬁ?@m~zm‘
WRR— K&

EPEREEPEERNBE-S-—NF
SAS+—ALFEAMBTEEZHE
RERFINT :

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee  Committee = Committee Meeting
BEExe ENZEE FHEEET REZEEST RRBEEAS
Executive directors HTES

Chan Sui Kau PR 35 BR 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRoKZE 4/4 N/A 212 1 1/
Chan Wing Kee R 7k 4/4 N/A 212 11 11
Chan Wing To BRoKE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chan Suk Man ZIBRR X 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BR ok 4 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley AT 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
So Ying Woon, Alan EpEiE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Leung Hok Lim RER 4/4 3/3 212 11 1/
Lin Keping MEF 4/4 33 212 11 1/
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael sk 4/4 3/3 212 11 11
Choi Ting Ki BEHR 4/4 3/3 2/2 11 11

The 2013 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held on 6 September
2013, all the directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and the external auditor of the Company,
attended the AGM to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Proceedings of annual general meeting are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance
practices. Voting results were posted on the Company’s and the Stock

Exchange’s websites on the day of the AGM.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the
Company in writing his independence from the Company in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee and the Board considered that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent with reference

to Rule 3.13.

WBFRIBFAEG(RREFAENR
TE-ZHFhARAERT 2HES BHE
EXEIR  BREREEIR  FHEES
ITRERRBREZEEIFERIIMERBEI T H
FERREAFASZERRRER - AR AR
HERREVRIBRREFASETEFE
HITRELXERFR -RELERERR
REBFASEHEADR AU RERZIH
UH B

AATCEESEBIAYUTEESER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The Board is committed to ensure that a good corporate governance
framework and practices are established within the Group. The Board is
responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance functions
as required under code provision D.3.] of the Code which are set out

below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure

in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman of the Board is Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the Managing
Director of the Company is Mr. Chan Wing Kee. The roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the Company
are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies and
overall business development planning. The Managing Director’s duty
is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the Board level is to ensure a balance of power and

authority.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.
The Company provides tailored induction programme to new director
upon his appointment to equip him with the appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and to ensure that he is
fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the relevant law
and the Listing Rules. The Company also circulates regular updates and
materials on changes and developments relating to the legislative and

regulatory environment to the directors.

During the year, the Company organised two in-house seminars
to update the Directors on the new amendments to the corporate
governance code and relevant Listing Rules. The Company circulates
materials relating to the legislative and regulatory environment to the
directors on a regular basis for their information. The Company also
encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars, conferences or
forums to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
year, all directors participated in continuous professional development in

compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal of an
insurance policy on directors’ and officers’ liability to ensure our
directors and senior management are protected from any liability arising

from the performance of their duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, each with mandate to
oversee particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. Each of these
three Board committees is set up with written terms of reference. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstance at the expenses of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Leung
Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is

listed out on page 17.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee has, inter
alia, reviewed and discussed with management and the external auditor
the interim and annual results with a view to ensuring that the Group’s
financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Audit Committee has
met with external auditor twice a year, in the absence of management,
to discuss any issues arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
independence and quality of work of KPMG and has recommended to
the Board to re-appoint KPMG as auditor for the year ending 3|1 March
2015.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different
from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration

Committee meeting is listed out on page |7.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate given the duties and performance of the
respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are

competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the

financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive directors, namely
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping,
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by
Mr. Leung Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Nomination

Committee meeting is listed out on page |7.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-election of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the managing
director. The Nomination Committee will consider the suitability of the
candidate on the basis of his professional qualification, skills, experience

and background.

During the year ended 3| March 2014, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises 7 individuals. Details
of backgrounds and qualifications of each senior executive are set out in

the section of “Directors and Management”.

During the year ended 3| March 2014, the emoluments of the senior

management of the Group fell within the following bands:

BREEAEME

TEBSREEASBREIEAL &K
THRAEBESREEENESREEAS ]
_Eﬁ °
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HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 8 7T £ 3,000,00058 T |
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 32 to 33.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work of the Group amounted to HK$1,844,000 (2013:
HK$1,729,000), of which a sum of HK$1,581,000 (2013: HK$1,620,000)
was paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor,
KPMG and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory
audit and non-audit were HK$1,581,000 (2013: HK$1,620,000) and
HK$165,000 (2013: HK$210,000) respectively. The non-audit services

principally comprise tax services provided to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code

throughout the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls. A sound system of internal control is
designed to provide reasonable assurance, but not absolute assurance,

regarding the achievement of the Company’s objectives.

Management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal controls, while the Board, through the
Audit Committee, oversees the actions of management and monitors
the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management. Apart from
the support provided by internal audit function, the process used in
reviewing the effectiveness of internal control system includes discussion
with management on significant control failings or weakness and risk
areas identified by management. In addition, this year management
adopted control self-assessment on selected key controls and reported
their assessment results to the Audit Committee. The assessment
requires management to evaluate, assess and certify the compliance with

key internal controls pertaining to their particular areas of responsibility.

Based on the information received from management and internal audit
function, the Audit Committee concluded that for the year ended 31

March 2014, the internal control system was adequate and effective.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Instead of engaging an external firm of qualified accountants to provide
internal audit services, to put more emphasis on risk and internal

control, an Internal Audit Department was set up in September 2013.

Since then, the Internal Audit Department conducted and completed
an initial assessment of the design and effectiveness of internal controls
of the Group. The assessment results and proposed improvement
opportunities were discussed and agreed with management and were
reported to the Audit Committee. In addition, an annual audit plan
for the year ending 31 March 2015 established by the Internal Audit
Department is approved by the Audit Committee. The scope of audits is
selected based on risk assessment to ensure that business activities with

higher risks will be covered.

Since the establishment of the Internal Audit Department, the Audit
Committee had four meetings with the head of the Internal Audit
Department to review and monitor the effectiveness of internal audit
function. At invitation of the Audit Committee, the meetings were also

attended by the Vice Chairman of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the
Vice Chairman on governance matters and also facilitates the induction
and professional development of directors. The Company Secretary
also keeps proper records of all Board and Committee meetings.
The biography of the Company Secretary is set out on page 31. The
Company Secretary has undertaken no less than |5 hours of professional

training during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting “EGM”

Article 67 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Ordinance. According to section 566 of
the Companies Ordinance, the directors of the Company are required
to call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do
so from shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings of the

Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the request for
a general meeting must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company or in electronic form at cs_info@ygm.com.hk
and must be authenticated by the requisitionist(s). The directors must
call a general meeting within 21 days after the date of the receipt of the
requests to do so. The meeting called must be held on a date not more

than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for

handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
22 Tai Yau Street

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-Mail: cs_info@ygm.com.hk
Telephone: (852) 2327 5111
Facsimile: (852) 2352 2286

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
No amendments are made to the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 89, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company and
the Honorary Chairman of YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justices of
the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until he reached
the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan,
Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu). In 2013 Dr. Chan was being
awarded Industrialist of the Year from The Federation of Hong Kong

Industries.

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Chan received
another two honorary university conferments: one was an Honorary
University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and the
other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in 2008. Dr. Chan
received an Honorary Fellowship from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2013.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 68, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same
year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director of the
Company in 1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He has been
appointed as the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading
Limited since May 2010. Mr Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 67, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and
later became Sales Manager. He was appointed as Director in 1977
and Managing Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading
Limited; Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many
textile negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau.
He is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th, | Ith and |2th of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th
& 9th National People’s Congress of China; Member of Commission
on Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative
Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee
Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 63, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
as Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. Mr.
Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from the
University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive experience in
the textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing
Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.
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EEREBAE

Chan Suk Man, MSc

Aged 66, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 66, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group from
1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was the
Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987 to 2006 and the
Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from 2006 to 2010. He
has been the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading
Limited since 2010. Mr. Chan was appointed as a director of Crater
Gold Mining Limited (formerly known as Gold Anomaly Limited) (whose
shares are listed on Australian Securities Exchange) in January 2013 and
as chairman of the board of directors of Crater Gold Mining Limited in
March 2013. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, |JP

Madam Chan, is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the YGM Trading Limited. She joined the Group in 1973 and was
appointed as the Director of the Group in 1983. Madam Chan has
extensive experience in the garment retail and wholesale business. She
is a Member of the BUD Fund Programme Management Committee of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a Council Member of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the Chairman of the Garment
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a
Member of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the First Vice-President of
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Council Member of
City University of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from
Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan,
aged 63, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing, Sun, Samuel.
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So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 64, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive

Director of the Company in 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 79. Mr. Leung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior
partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-
executive director of Beijing-Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies, namely YGM Trading Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited,
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and

High Fashion International Limited.

Lin Keping

Aged 75, Mr. Lin has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He
is a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an

Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 69, Mr. Sze has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2010. He was a former Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position
he held for eight years prior to his retirement on | May 2004. Before
that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong
Government. He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of
Swire Pacific Limited and YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as
a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and

currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.
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Choi Ting Ki

Aged 59, Mr. Choi was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in December 2012. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member
of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Jing’an District, Shanghai. In 1978, Mr. Choi graduated
from the Department of Accounting of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He joined
KPMG in the same year and has held various positions, including Partner
of the audit department of KPMG Hong Kong Office, Managing Partner
of KPMG Shanghai Office, Senior Partner of KPMG Huazhen Shanghai
Office as well as Senior Partner of KPMG Huazhen in Eastern and
Western China. Mr. Choi retired from KPMG Huazhen in April 2010.
Mr. Choi is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sinopec

Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited and YGM Trading Limited.
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MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 66, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of
Hong Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Senoussi, Serge

Aged 49, is the Managing Director of Lavender Garment Limited and the
General Manager of liaison office in Bangladesh. Mr. Senoussi obtained
a Master’s degree in Econometrics in 1986 and a diploma in Scientific
Management Methods in 1987 from the University of Paris X Nanterre,
France. He joined the Company in 1993 to develop the business in

Bangladesh.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 56, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of

Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 52, Ms. Chui is the General Manager of Sales Department. Ms.
Chui joined the Group in 1994, and has over 25 years' managerial
experience in fashion business. She was awarded Master of Business
Administration (Fashion Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004.

Yung Choi Yin, Margaret

Aged 50, is the General Manager of Sales Department and received
a Bachelor's degree from RMIT University and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She

joined the Company in 1985.

Yip Chung On

Aged 51, Mr. Yip is the General Manager of Sales Department. Mr. Yip
joined the Company in 1982, and was promoted to Sales Manager in
1989. With wide range of both woven and knit experience in garment
sourcing and merchandizing, he was appointed as General Manager in
2005.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 48, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Group. She joined the Group in 2000 and has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, treasury and company secretarial work. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BY &R RE

cblic

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 34 to 149, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule || to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BY &RRAERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

|7 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T —NFE=A=+—HIFE (UET:H)

2014 2013
—E—-F —E—-=
Note $’000 $°000
g3 Fr Fr
Turnover EXHE 3&12 1,074,132 1,333,068
Cost of sales HE R A (916,852) (1,110,978)
Gross profit EF 157,280 222,090
Other revenue HA g A 4,837 4,456
Other net income Hit U 5858 2,516 423
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (77,793) (81,870)
Administrative expenses THER (70,191) (72,444)
Other operating expenses Hih&& B A (25,148) (33,382)
(Loss)/profit from operations e (F|) uF (8,499) 39,273
Finance costs & AR 5(a) (3,860) (4,398)
Share of losses of associates FEhEE N REE 17 (220) (398)
Share of profits/(losses) of joint EiEEE R, (FHiE)
ventures 18,515 (4,821)
Impairment losses on fixed assets EEEERERE 13() (6,935) (8,504)
Net valuation gains on investment REMEGEWE FHE
properties 13(a) 19,257 44,905
Profit before taxation Bk B4 A %= A 5 18,258 66,057
Income tax Fig® 6(a) (7,059) (10,311)
Profit for the year REEGF 11,199 55,746
Attributable to: ERBR:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARABREREA 9 11,920 53,082
Non-controlling interests IR R RER (721) 2,664
Profit for the year REERF 11,199 55,746
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted EXR#E I $0.06 $0.26

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company EARATRESEE ANKRESFBEIRNH
FF27(b) ° SE43E Z 1498 (Y BT 5% B 7~ B 75 3R

notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements. R2Z—EZ M o

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 27(b). The

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EL3 KA WA W
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeEEkEMEEKS X

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=
Note $’000 $°000
g3 Fr T
Profit for the year AEERF 11,199 55,746
Other comprehensive income AFEHMEE KRS
for the year (after tax and (MBRHREREIAER)
reclassification adjustments) 10
Items that may be reclassified HRABEEFT HIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmmEE
Exchange differences on translation of:  [E 5% Z %8 :
- financial statements of —BREFRBRIINE DR
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong B MRAMEE 3,965 1,662
— share of associates’ and joint - BEREABEEQTAR
ventures’ net assets EELEEEFE 10,221 3,689
14,186 5,351
Available-for-sale securities: AHERS
net movement in the investment REEMFBEEZE T
revaluation reserve 440 (984)
Cash flow hedges: REREE M :
net movement in the hedging reserve R EEEEE (123) 48
Other comprehensive income AEEHM2EKE
for the year 14,503 4,415
Total comprehensive income AFEEXHREEARHE
for the year 25,702 60,161
Attributable to: ERBER:
Equity shareholders of the Company KARREREA 26,333 57,300
Non-controlling interests FERRFRES (631) 2,861
Total comprehensive income FAEETEHRBARE
for the year 25,702 60,161

The notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements.

FREZI9ENHEBARTHHRRK 2 — I

e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B %R &

At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-B—mE=A=+—8 (L # )

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=
Note $°000 $°000
et FrT Fr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(a)
— Investment properties -REWE 233,776 213,783
— Other property, plant and equipment —E % - MEK R HE 69,874 87,599
— Interest in leasehold land held for - BEKEHEZBA
own use under operating leases HELT i 1,696 1,727
305,346 303,109
Intangible assets EBRERE 14 3,117 3,117
Goodwill GRS 15 - -
Interests in associates iR RN e 17 1,912 2,096
Interests in joint ventures EEDERES 18 638,810 610,118
Prepayment for fixed assets EEEERNTR - 870
Other financial assets HihemEE 19 7,381 7,069
Deferred tax assets BEFFEHERE 25(b)(iii) 2,403 2,454
958,969 928,833
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 115,254 78,340
Trade and other receivables JFEE Uit B o e L A B WK 21 158,752 192,795
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAREEEY 22 275,070 270,015
549,076 541,150
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FE A< BR 3% % EL At FE A 3K 23 176,410 150,810
Current tax payable A A EAR R 25(a) 9,445 15,288
185,855 166,098
Net current assets REBEEFE 363,221 375,052
Total assets less current liabilities EBEEZAERABER 1,322,190 1,303,885

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R &

At 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-B—mE=A=+—8 (L # T

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=
Note $’000 $°000
Hra Fr Fr
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Provision for long service payments REIRE & 2145 26 21,302 22,915
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHEE 25(b) (i) 13,596 9,043
34,898 31,958
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,287,292 1,271,927
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital: nominal value B EE - 103,374
Other statutory capital reserves HM 2 EE R R E - 105,044
Share capital and other statutory AR E AL EE A
capital reserves 27(c) 208,418 208,418
Other reserves HibfEE 1,071,598 1,055,602
Total equity attributable to equity ERFERALQFARE
shareholders of the Company BFEAESRE 1,280,016 1,264,020
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 7,276 7,907
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,287,292 1,271,927

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June

2014.

Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

The notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements.

Chan Wing Kee

Managing Director

EXZECR-Z2-NFAATLAKER
REBRM LSRR

4

R K AR
BEFHREE

FREZI49ENM BRI B HRR 2 — A

7 o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 IR T 2=

At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-B—mE=A=+—8 (L # )

2014 2013
—E—NF —E-=
Note $’000 $°000
Hra Fr Fr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(b)
— Investment properties -REWE 280,666 255,590
— Other property, plant and equipment —E % - MEK R HE 30,491 27,279
311,157 282,869
Intangible assets B ERE 14 3,117 3,117
Investments in subsidiaries MEATKRE 16 79,413 79,314
Interests in joint ventures EEDLERES 18 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HittemEE 19 7,381 7,069
631,886 603,187
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 20 35,839 22,535
Trade and other receivables FE U BR TR B E i FE UK 3R 21 155,811 205,237
Cash and cash equivalents HeRELEEY 22 193,686 142,387
385,336 370,159
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FE A3 BR X % HL At FE 15 3K 23 71,861 59,178
Current tax payable FEAT A< BB 1B 25(a) 295 147
72,156 59,325
Net current assets REEEZEE 313,180 310,834
Total assets less current liabilities BEZABERABARG 945,066 914,021

38 YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 7R L 2=

At 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-B—mE=A=+—8 (L # T

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=
Note $°000 $°000
et FrT Fr
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Provision for long service payments REIRE & 2145 26 1,349 1,708
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHEE 25(b) (i) 4,445 3,859
5,794 5,567
NET ASSETS BEEZE 939,272 908,454
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARFE 27(a)
Share capital: nominal value B EE - 103,374
Other statutory capital reserves HMEEE R R E - 105,044
Share capital and other statutory AR E AL EE A
capital reserves 208,418 208,418
Other reserves HibfEE 730,854 700,036
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 939,272 908,454

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June

2014.
Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee
Chairman Managing Director

The notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &4 BA w
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 £ #§

ESEERZE-HEERATEHRER

REZMLYIERE -

FREZI9ENHEBARTHHRRK 2 — I

e

39



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REBRSE X

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_T-—NF=A=1—HLFE (UETH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERBRALERAREA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment  buildings Non-
Share Share redemption  Exchange arisingon revaluation revaluation Hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
B GRERK RE  1#EEP FERBR

BEx  REEE REEE  EXRE EioEE ERRE  EMEBE HHEE  AHEE  Rem £ B EEAE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
123 73 123 123 123 123 123 123 23 123 123 23 123

Note (Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)y)) (Note 27(d)(vi)
() R (WEZGn) (BEzgm) (W) (WEurdw) wEmgy) wEzdm)

Balance at | April 2012 R-F-ZFRA-RZEH 103374 102,753 2091 139,966 (0174 (] 31,036 - 1236 874,647 121,125 3079 1222,04

Changes in equity for FRERRY:

the year:

Profit for the year REERA - - - - - - - - - 53,082 53,082 2664 55,746

Other comprehensive income 22 E R 10 - - - 5,154 - (984) - #® - - 4218 197 4415
Total comprehensive income ~~ 2AREEE - - - 5,154 - (984) - 9 - 53,082 57300 2861 6016l

Capital contribution from FERRRERRA

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - - 1967 1,967
Dividends approved in respect ~ REIABEBH L-FE
of the previous year HRE 27(b)(i) - - - - - - - - - (12,405) (12.405) - (12,405)

Balance at 31 March 2013~ W=F-=£ZA=1-AR
and | April 2013 E-CERA-AZEH 103374 102753 291 145,120 (74 (968) 31,0 8 86 9IS 1264020 0 ey

Changes in equity for FREREE:

the year:

Proft for the year REFET - - - - - - - - - 11,920 11920 (1) 11,199

Other comprehensive income 22 ERE 10 - - - 140% - 4“0 - (13) - - 14413 90 14503
Total comprehensive income 2R EEE - - - 14,09 - 440 - (13) - 11,920 %33 (831) 25,701

Transition to no-par value R-E-mE=A=R

regime on 3 March 2014 BEZEAERANE () 105044 (102753) 2291) - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends approved in respect ~ AHIAHEBR L -FE
of the previous year LS 27(b) i) - - - - - - - - - (10.337) (10.337) - (10337)

Balance at 31 March 2014~ RZF-BEZJ=t-8

284 6418 - - Imas () (548 310% 7 T 9ls%T 1280016 01819
The notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements. FEREZTI9ENH BRI BHRR 22—
5 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERTRER
For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2T —NFE=A=+—HIFE (LUET:H)

2014 2013
—E-NEF —F-=
Note $’000 $°000
HtaE Fr Fr

Operating activities KRETH
Cash generated from operations REXBRAERE 22(b) 26,300 160,670
Tax paid 2B E

— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid -BENBEEFNEHR (8,117) (13,623)

— Tax paid outside Hong Kong - BB BRIIHRIE (108) (24)
Net cash generated from operating RZEZEfMEBNRESFR

activities 18,075 147,023
Investing activities KRETE
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets B8 E EE & E R (2,915) (12,468)
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HERE R#EER

machinery and other fixed assets HithEEEEMESNIE 712 381
Interest received B F B 2,275 2,255
Dividends received from unlisted 2k LETRERES

equity securities ZRE 429 389
Payment for investment in an associate R — & AT IREM - (2,460)
Capital contribution from #?“?&Hxﬂxiﬁﬁxhk

non-controlling interests - 1,967
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFBFRE, (FTA)K

investing activities RE&FHE 501 (9,936)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERETRER

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T —NFE=A=+—HIFE (UET:H)

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=
Note $’000 $°000
HtaE Fr T
Financing activities MEEE
Repayment of bank loans BEEIRITER - (30,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIZRITE B FIE - 30,000
Interest paid 2R E (3,865) (4,393)
Dividends paid 2IRRE (10,337) (12,405)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEZBMTANR S FH (14,202) (16,798)
Net increase in cash and ReRREZEWEMER
cash equivalents 4,374 120,289
Cash and cash equivalents at the REVMZzRERESEEY
beginning of the year 270,015 149,227
Effect of foreign exchange IERIBEBH I HE
rates changes 681 499
Cash and cash equivalents at RELRZRERELEEY
the end of the year 22(a) 275,070 270,015
The notes on pages 43 to 149 form part of these financial statements. FEPREZIOENRTB AT BHRR 2 —

7 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESHHEE

(a) EflEH

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements comply
with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
Il to that Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected

in these financial statements.

AU BBRDRBEBGTMA
ERHGMEBEAZ(ERBTER
HEEAN(TEBMBREED]) -
BEMEEANEIEBMER
HEA - (BEBEHEANTER
B ER]) ERBREBLR
CEFTRAIMGAER - ABBHE
KBEBATKRGIFERZHE
RE REBIIAFE B D THRA
(5622F) M RI15E76F F871%
R AEINERARE K &t
ZBEMERREZHMRE &
MHRBER TV REERLEF
E#EE AREA D BRG (8
NE) 2R EMELEEE - RE
BRETFEEBHEREFME
FRABIKES LHRAN T LR
BDZHEERE - UTAHEEER
RAZEIESHERHE -

BB ASEEME THA
RGBT 2B BHBHREER
YRAEBERADBD 2 AETH
BERERHATHREPRSL - K
EERTRBESHHBENR
FER L E 5B R AT & M 2 B 5T
REBMRMRRZENBRR 2
ER O HIIRME2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ZE_E-WE=ZA=+—RIEFE (LB

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s

interests in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note |(h)(i));

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale

securities (see note |(f)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

O)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 32.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows, and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E-T-mE=Z A=+ —ALFE WETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and

the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture

(see note 1(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note |(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E-T-MEZ A=+ —ALFE WETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets

of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes I(e) and (k)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the

associate or the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair

value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note I(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint venture are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(if)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

j:—/\

E—NE=ZA=+—RHLLFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(e)

®

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

I (k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities other than investments in

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out

in notes |(t)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses

(see note 1(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

®

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note I(k)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in

notes I(t)(iv) and I(t)(v), respectively.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note I(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is

reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the

non-financial asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(8)

(h)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects

profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity

to profit or loss immediately.

Fixed assets

(i) Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note |(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-_FT-ME=A=1T—RLLFE (ETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value unless they
are still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note |(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.

Other property, plant and equipment
Items of other property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

In preparing these financial statements, an advantage has
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, with the effect
that land and buildings which have been revalued in prior
years have not been revalued at the end of the reporting
period. Such properties are stated at their carrying value
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and

will not be revalued in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property carried at fair value, the property is
revalued at the date of transfer. Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property is recognised
in profit or loss and any resulting increase in carrying
amount is recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase in the land and buildings revaluation

reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and buildings revaluation reserve to

retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line

basis over the remaining term of the lease;
- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the

lease and their estimated useful lives, being no

more than 40 years after the date of completion;

- Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years; and

—  Other fixed assets between 3 to 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-_FT-ME=A=1T—RLLFE (ETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

()

(i) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note [(k)).
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Both the period and method of

amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out

above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment

or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note |(h)(i)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the

Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note |(h). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note |(k). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining

balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note |(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention

of the Group about one or more of the following loss

events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
\ ZE_T-WE=R="1T—RIFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 1(d)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note |(k)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note | (k)(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FTESHHE(E

(k) EERE (&)
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and () EBERKREFFREREM
FEW 6 1E ()

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-_FT-ME=A=1T—RLLFE (ETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- other property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as

being held for own use under an operating lease;

—  intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures in the Company’s statement of financial

position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Q)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value

in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-_FT-ME=A=1T—RLLFE (ETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Q)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see notes I(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 #§

. ETESBER(F

(k) EERE (&)

(i)

B & EHE (E

- RESBERD
BREBEIZEE s
PR LA E T W B R Y
RETBERFNE(
BEKEERERER

E - HEZREHER
TEfmE -

P B R E RS B R
RRBETFRIDNE
BEMEEENEER
EEESMR - FIRE
HERBRERERRDN
FEFABEA-

(iii) HEIEY &R A

ERRARE  NEBHERF
BERBGERIEMRE
HHBHREI 2R EREE
AV BEEESEA K+
B ERE c RAPBER K
SEERARYIBFERER
FrrE MRS ERIR - %
RRBERR (2B (k)
(i) Rz (ii)) °

ERHPEREIETEEHE
A AR R 5 A LA AR
BBk 2 Ik £ h BB R 25 VR
BEEEEERHMBEIESR
| o fARRNBEZ S
B B R F RS S AR B TR
BB R B R R 1R
FBRDEE - P HHEE
RWRESBRNTERE -
HZg WA HHERERS
DN EERFEMRTHE
HRE R 2 A H Ao B
- EMBERNEMEER
MM IR AR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o

(m)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note I(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

. ETESBER(F

0}

(m)

rE
FEDUBARASEFEWE
THEEBEAR-

AU I RAERE - H
TEEMERBERA - MIEAE
URSHEEERBMRIER 2K
$ o

AERFERUAEXERBESD
NG EERETREERFEE
PR ARG ZH -

FEHEFENRESEEAMA
WAERNPBABI B/ -
FEHEMRZETERFERT
ENEBRGEHRBERES
BENHEAERAIH FEN
R ERCAEEE  9EHR
BONHMERRDERBTEIIE
THNFEHE-

P Wt BR R % HL th BB U R
FERER R ERRADSIEA
FEEAR HENUBERE
SRR S 68 A AN 1 BR R IR BRRLE
B (ZEMEIK) PIER - HE
WHBREBIEA LIRS
FEAEEERHZREERRKE,
FAWEERKFEARN - RZE
BRT » BRI ANRR
BIRREEBYER-

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 A |

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3§

63



64

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(n)

(o)

(r)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note I(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i) Long service payments
The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payments are the amounts of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods, calculated in accordance with

the relevant laws.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i—/\

E—NE=ZA=+—RHLLFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained

profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(h)
(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHBERHE
....... (COMUINUED) | o et
(r) Income tax (continued) (r) FiB® (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and RHNELEFBHRESRREEE

movements therein, are presented separately from each HEELMYR WA FFIE -

other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against THMELEMBREERGHELR

current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred NBRANEBFEETHERELK

tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally e EEREANEHE

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current & WEREUTH RGNS

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: RT 0 7 A B B HE 85 7S HR AIE
EFREHEAE:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the - ZFHFESHREENERE K
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a RRRAEE T EIRFEE
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability ELEE FEREHEZERE
simultaneously; or MEEZEE S =

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they - EEFREHEENEE &
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation LEEMEESNENRRE B
authority on either: BHEEMUTHP —BEK

WS H AR :

—  the same taxable entity; or - B—EHER =

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future - TREEFSE B
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax ERTEERAEEE
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or STERBELEFRSHE
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets BEZEEIRBEEL
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis FriEBiEE T A E K
or realise and settle simultaneously. B RFEEEER

RSB EENEERE
FEFEPHEE  HE
BRRZEENEEZ
BfE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income. Where
the guarantee is issued by the Company in respect of
the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, the
asset identified is a form of capital contribution, i.e. an

addition to the cost of the investment in the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(s)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount

initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or when goods are shipped on
board which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of

any trade discounts.

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income are recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.

Property rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E-T-mE=Z A=+ —ALFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(vi)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful

life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v)

()

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after
| January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before | January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at

the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T —NFE=A=+—HIFE (UET:H)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(w) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in ().

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHBERHE
....... (SONBINUEA) || oottt certenties ettt
(x) Segment reporting x) ZEBHwE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item REDHRNUBRERT2Z|MD
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the EoBEESHEENEHEAE

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

E&ETREEASRENMES
REREAEAEELBRILE
BB R AP AE S B0 R RIS
ERAHH o

RUBREMS - AREREE
DEIEEH D BBEHEEM
BERBERERRBRBHM
BE-LEBEME FFEEN
B - DHEERRERRE A
FEAREERBEMEETEEL
BIBRSN - BRI ER 2 & D
BUFERBI L EER  RE
BOFRE -

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BENHBEEEH

ERETMASCHMZERAER
RAQNBEARSHPEERER ZH
ARBUBRELEARETBHMBRE
HERZAERTAS » e » THI B2 EAR

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial statements —

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS |1, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

SENMBRREE -

(BBEGTERD)FISK (BT) -
BB #RFER 25— B2 B
EHHHZZ]

(BB BREER) EI05R
[HR&RB#H %]

(BB BREER)EI15R
BELH

(BB HREER) HI125%
[REMEEEZ ZHKE ]

(BB BREER) HI3R
[2FEEE]

REB Y ARBRMEM SRR A SFH
BB R R -

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are

discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial

statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive

income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit
or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation
of other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new titles “statement of profit or loss” and

“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” as

introduced by the amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure or
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those

returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of

the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its

involvement with other entities as at | April 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E-T-MEZ A=+ —ALFE WETH)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations
under the arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified
as joint operations under HKFRS || are recognised on a line-
by-line basis to the extent of the joint operator’s interest in the
joint operation. All other joint arrangements are classified as joint
ventures under HKFRS || and are required to be accounted for
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed as an

accounting policy choice.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS |1, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to its interests in
joint arrangements and re-evaluated its involvement in its joint
arrangements. The Group has reclassified the investment from
jointly controlled entities to joint ventures. The investment
continues to be accounted for using the equity method and
therefore this reclassification does not have any material impact on

the financial position and the financial result of the Group.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured
entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 16,

17 and 18.

B BEED (&

(BEBUMBREE FIIR/ &L
#1

(BBMBREER) B1SEMA(E
BEEAENREEELENE
#/ FHERSERHI AHERKEN
RELX -BRAFRAELSKES
ERUTERENABEE  EER
X EHNBRRUREMEENER
RMBEESERHFNER -SERH
ERBEER(EBYBREERE
SRTHHBEE  ARoERR LR
HER  BEUHBEEERGHHLBRE
ENESRR AEEGBEERHSE
HEBR(EBYBREERDEIIR
THEEDLE UAREREIELE
BEaBRMRP AR - BENULLH
B ERAEHBRRETBRET -

HRREA(EBMBHREER) B
5o AREXSHEBERNSE YR
EREECEHEERR  YEMMER
BRERHZBH -FEECKNEE
DRAZREEHIBRBELER
E-ZREBEBRESEAR
WZEH D BHAREE BRI R
RETEBHAEMEREE -

(BEEBUMBHREEREI2R/REM
EREsoRE]

(BERUBRELERDFNFELEER
MEBAR -8R BELRAUR
FEMEBLBLCERNEHER
ERAE—EE—WEAR - Z(BB
MBEREEAFENERENIHES
E-MBZAREEAZEEERE
RoMEBANAEEZRE K&
BRI BEBERMTI6 1I7TRIsH IR
HEZEHEEEN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS I3
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes
13 and 28. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets and

liabilities.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale
of garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental

of properties.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, processing service income and rental income. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

SR RRES (&)

(BERMBREER)FIR/ L FE
EitEJ
(BREMBRELEBBRERQF
EBEFEESINE— R UEKE
BCERBMBRELER)NRITES -
(BB BHRELBBRTHEEH
CRMIARFSHIANDFEE
ERBCZEZREER -HEEEAR
AEEZRE  ARECRUMBHSE
MEEI3R28FRHUZEREER - &%
MC(EBMBRELZEIBRYARE
BEEREENAFEETELEE
AERTE -

Rép@m - REMTRENYERS -

EXERAHEREFERNEEE
BE-MIBBUARBEEA - REF
NEADEXRENTEIBZWASHEE
BT

2014 2013

—ZE—MF —_E—=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Manufacture and sale of garments BUERHERK 996,590 1,304,726
Manufacture and sale of textiles REREEHER 46,968 11,635
Processing service income 0T AR A UK A 22,568 9,665
Property rental income MEHRSWA 8,006 7,042
1,074,132 1,333,068
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer (2013: two) with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 31 March
2014, revenue from sales of garments to the customer, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be under
common control with the customer, amounted to approximately
$165,199,000 (2013: $411,661,000) and arose in all geographical
regions in which the manufacture and sale of garments and textiles
division is active. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the customer is set out in note 28(a).

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME

CXE (A

AEB2EFEREIHN R

—BA(=ZE2—=F WMBE)EFMNE
XERBBEAEBERAZION - BE
—E-NFE=A=t+-HLFE:
RXEEFZEF EFLAEEE
NMEZEFEF2EE HEEHE
#15165,199,000T (=& — =%
411,661,0007T) * REZEWATELERSH
ERHEERKRGBRD TR E
WEE BZEFMIIEZEE
£ R 3 B 5 4 51 BB 1E BT RE28(a) ©

Hb W AR W= F 8

2014 2013
—E—NF —E-=F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Other revenue Hilgr A
Commission income AL PN 655 566
Dividend income from unlisted FELEMRERESZ
equity securities R EWA 429 389
Interest income FE WA 2,275 2,255
Management fee income EEEAKBA 869 804
Government grants BR®EBE - 62
Sundry income HAob g A 609 380
4,837 4,456
Other net income Hipu sz 25
Net exchange loss EHEIBFEE (234) (3,334)
Scrap income BERiA 1,335 2,012
Net loss on disposals of HEBREEE
fixed assets Eia (382) (1,790)
Net claim income BEE N = B 58 1,515 2,141
Recovery of receivables e AT e 2
written off in prior years P& LR 8 518
Sundry income Hiblk A 274 876
2,516 423
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ZE_E-WE=ZA=+—RIEFE (LB

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

5. BRBLAIER

BREBLADEFIE () (IR -

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=fF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
(a) Finance costs (a) R E R A
Interest on bank loans wholly BEROFRBHEEZRT
repayable within five years ERFE
(including bank charges) (BIERITER) 3,865 4,393
Other interest expense HibhFEER - 5
Cash flow hedges: reclassified ReERBEP : tERSP
from equity (note 10(b)) B E (M o0b) (5) -
3,860 4,398
(b) Staff costs* (b) & T R &
Salaries, wages and other benefits & IERHMEF 169,316 186,858
Contributions to defined BE E R RGRRET IR X
contribution retirement schemes 16,507 14,335
Provision for/(reversal of) long RERKESBE (BE)
service payments, net (note 26) R (Bfat26) 6,918 (981)
192,741 200,212
(c) Other items (c) Hf1BH
Cost of inventories® FE R 916,852 1,110,978
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in FEATIE & £ oh FROE A9 38 S
leasehold land# 6l 59
Depreciation” e 14,550 17,154
Net loss on cash flow hedging REZPEFIENRSE
instruments reclassified from equity REHPTIABBFE
(note 10(b)) (Ktati10(b)) 52 -
Impairment loss on trade debtors and bills EWEREEREE
receivable (note 2/(b)) 2B (MaE210)) = 291
Impairment loss on amount due from FEU —BE & R BRI RIEZ
an associate (note 2/(d)) WIEE B (BiE21(d) 242 4,171
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R &
—audit services — BT RIS 1,844 1,729
— other services — H At R 7% 168 210
Operating lease charges: REHEER
minimum lease payments BRIREESRE
— property rentals? ot/ E P&k 8,669 8,003
Rentals receivable from investment REYEEWES B EE
properties less direct outgoings of % H1,383,0007T
$1,383,000 (2013: $1,312,000) (ZZF—=4% 1,312,0007T) (6,623) (5,730)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

#

Cost of inventories includes $106,857,000 (2013: $109,469,000)

relating to staff costs, amortisation of pre-paid interests in leasehold

land, depreciation and operating lease charges, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@)

BRI R R (&)

# FERABEEIRA ENHEEL
WREBNEE MERCEHEE
A > BB E +106,857,000T (=&
— =% :109,469,0007T) ° HRALFAT
ERAELXDHIRZEEERAE
FAMEREES -

RERBERATNAER

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss () FEBBERTFATRNAEHRA
represents:
2014 2013
—E-OF e
$’000 $°000
F Fr
Current tax - A B IE-
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEFEHR
Provision for the year REFEERE 7,132 7,891
Under/(over)-provision in respect of DAEERERRE/
prior years (HBzERE) 44 (51
7,176 7,840
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong AERIE-FBEIN
Provision for the year AEHBERME 357 30
Over-provision in respect of DEEEBERE
prior years (5,151) (700)
(4,794) (670)
Deferred tax BEEMREH
Origination and reversal EREEMNEEREE
of temporary differences 4,677 3,141
7,059 10,311

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is
calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.

—E-NFEERABANSHBBERRE
FEZMGFTEFBREFN65% (=ZF
— =& 16.5%) M ETE -

ERRIIMBLR 2B IERUEET
EREBEAZRITHETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. MEBHERATWAEH (&)
....... STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) = ...
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIBEBXHMEIHERIREAB

applicable tax rates: R ERH R

2014 2013

—®2-mgE —B-=f%

$7000 $°000

FrT Fr

Profit before taxation BR T AR A 18,258 66,057

Notional tax on profit before taxation, REBEHBERESENH

calculated at the rates applicable to BAREGFERBAER

profits in the countries concerned NWERHIEA (5,319) 9,224
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR Z HNFHESE 1,245 1,662
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAGHRIBRANRELE (5,514) (6,560)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not REZHNREARBEEHEN

recognised RIS E 18,804 7,757
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in UFFERBRERFER

prior years but utilised during the year FRABBEENTEZE 41) (129)
Tax effect of undistributed profits of MEBARIREGELERDER

subsidiaries and joint ventures B 2 BRIE S A 2,612 (1,132)
Over-provision in respect of LEFEBERE

prior years (5,107) (751)
Others Hith 379 240
Actual tax expense ERFHIEY H 7,059 10,311
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of

Schedule |1 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong

RIEHEB QARG (F622F) Mf& 11
E78ik (LA BB QKA (F328)
BloUF) 2 REMPE2ESHE W

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: T
2014
—E-|mEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R
Exne RHEMER WA RAFHHA &F

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau R E 30 1,654 - - 1,684
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAELRE 30 1,911 - - 1,941
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk EE 30 1,911 - - 1,941
Mr. Chan Wing To Bk EEE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Man ARAX L+ 30 1,165 - 10 1,205
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BB EE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BAREMRZ L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,420 400 63 1,913
Independent non-executive BYFHITES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim RERKE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Lin Keping HRErE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael HEREE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Choi Ting Ki BEEEE 100 - - - 100
700 8,061 400 73 9,234
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) .= 1. BZEMS ) ...
2013
—E-ZF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2u

E2He  REMAEA MERAL  RIAGHEME EH
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr F Fr Fr F

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau BBk R £ 30 1,361 1,200 - 2,591
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAELRE 30 2,541 1,025 - 3,59
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk LA 30 2,541 1,550 - 4,121
Mr. Chan Wing To BAEEE 30 - 1,000 - 1,030
Ms. Chan Suk Man BIRRX £ 30 1,549 1,000 60 2,639
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BRAZLE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BRME L+ 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,394 700 62 2,186

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Lin Keping MRFEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael ikibed s 120 - - - 120
Mr. Choi Ting Ki BEEEE - - - - -

600 9,386 6,475 122 16,583
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-_ZT-—NME=ZA=+—8IFE (UE T

8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8. BEMEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2013:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emoluments of the other individual for the year ended 3| March

2014 are as follows:

EhfUMEss AT =@ (=
Z-=F OU)RES FENEH
BERME B@EZE-ZFZ-—NE=A
=t-HLEFEEMALTZHMEWT

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=

$’000 $°000

Fr Fr

Salaries and other emoluments HEeREMMS 2,377 1,039
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 1,240 1,300
Retirement scheme contributions EIRET B 107 47
3,724 2,386

The emoluments of the two (2013: one) individuals with the highest

emoluments are within the following bands:

ZmiiaesMEAL (ZE—ZF: —
) WMENFTHER :

2014 2013
—E-|mE —E-=
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7 Z2,000,0007C I -
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 23,000,0005C [ [
2

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $34,556,000 (2013: $76,772,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the

Company are set out in note 27(b).

9. ADFAREFEAEMLRF
ARRARESAEARGESENEE
—FEMNARRAYBHRRAER
34,556,0007T (=& — = : 76,772,000
TT) e

ENRERFALOARESEAZR
BERFEIIRMEE27(b) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ... . 10, EEEEWE ...
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) H 2 MW S 4E B3 B
comprehensive income BRE
2014 003
It S 2-zf
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax expense amount amount  Tax expense amount
BRASE  BEXM BHALSE BHASE  FEXL  BHALE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr I I I
Exchange differences on EXZH:
translation of:
~ financial statements of -REFEEINBATRE
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong RRMEL 3,965 - 3,965 1,662 - [,662
- share of associates’ and joint -REREBENARAE
ventures' net assets TEEERE 10,221 = 10,221 3,689 - 3,689
14,186 - 14,186 5,351 - 5,351
Available-for-sale securities: AfLERS
Change in fair value recognised in ENRRREEREE
the investment revaluation MATEESD
reserve during the year 440 - 440 (984) - (984)
Cash flow hedges: REREHH:
Net movement in the hedging WhiEEBEE
reserve (147) 24 (123) 57 o) 48
Other comprehensive income A2 Ak 14,479 ] 14,503 4424 9) 4415
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ZE_EB-WNE=ZA=T—RIFE (LB

(b) Components of other comprehensive income

10. Htt2H Wz ()

(b) Hih2HEUKEWAERI M5

2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cash flow hedges: ReREHM:
Effective portion of changes in fair FREIHEHIAZEAN
value of hedging instruments HAONATFEERY
recognised during the year (194) 57
Reclassification adjustments for BN EREBEEANER
amounts transferred to profit or loss: ZEE
— turnover —EXH 52 -
— finance costs —BE KA 5) -
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) to  IEIEFTEFFRENE M
other comprehensive income Z2EWERFT A (FIKR) 24 9)
Net movement in the hedging reserve FREHMZEBER
during the year recognised in other BRANENREEEH TR
comprehensive income (123) 48
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE s WL BB
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BEREXZER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $11,920,000 (2013: $53,082,000) and
206,748,000 (2013: 206,748,000) ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic

earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 3| March

2014 and 2013.

(b)

BEREXBADBREERER
KAREBRBREFTEAEML
= F11,920,000T (=2 —=
53,082,0007T) R FRNED HITEB
[%206,748,0008% (=& — =
206,748,0008% ) 5T & ©

SRBERF
BE-T-NER-FT-=fF=
A=t+-BLEE AATLE
BEEERBENZLER M
HEREARFIESREBRA
AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

12, SEGMENT REPORTING e
The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments:

- Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
covers the manufacture and sale of garment and textile

products, and provision of garment processing services.

- Interests in joint ventures: the Group’s joint ventures engage

in the manufacture and sale of textile yarn products.

- Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and

industrial premises to generate rental income.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
managed directly by the segments with the exception
of current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 #§

L ARERE

REBUDBREBHEHEY - XEEH
NaArEEESTHREEAERNNZ
BEM (BRI BERRFAMMERR) -
MAEXZ2FUAT=FEETF2HD A
REBIBEKEMKE D WS U
BTHAT28DH

- RERNHERKREAHM LD
MERREREEXNRRHBE
o BRI TR -

- AEOREE AREARLY
RELERUEHHRYBER -

- PEHRE W HEERERT
ERFUWHASWA -

(a) PWEEK -BEERKEE
RAEIBREAR IR BE
B AEBESRTHREREASR
UTEEERZAT2HD EE
MHXE EEREE:

HERFELRR 4 im RYF
HE 78

NHEEREMEEE  BETE
BELEE BHEQARER H
HEMEE - ELREHEE
TREFAPHREARHEMEXE
E-DHEEEERASBEEE
ENFRBEEE  ETEERAE
BB BEMSHEEREM
hEEE-



\

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R 3R Y &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

\ ZE_T-WEFE=R="1T—RIFE L&)
12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) ... . ... . 12, BRB|E M),
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) DIEB -EERAE A

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property HEREERLREHBRYE
leasing segments (continued) HHEZ B (%)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and finance cost and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at
“adjusted EBITDA”, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of profits less losses of associates, net valuation
gains on investment properties, auditors’ remuneration and

other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and finance costs from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Interests in joint ventures

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, and presented as a separate reportable segment.
The Group’s senior executive management reviews the post-
tax result of the interests in joint ventures, which is defined
as the reportable segment profit for this particular segment.
Reportable segment assets represent the Group’s share of net
assets of the joint ventures. Revenue of joint ventures is not
presented as reportable segment revenue because it is not
reviewed by the Group’s senior executive management for

resource allocation purposes.

THREFAZHD BOBAR I
RUBELDMAEENBANZ
HEBRELDMNEETER
BEMEENIHMmE -

ARBEDMERNZFAETER
[FRAEMERAE - BiE - ERE
HEATHWE]  TRIRIRSERE
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R#E | RAREFRBEEDN
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B BRI R A A W
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) ... ... . 12, DEBE M) o
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) IHEE EEREE(H)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BE-E—NEKZE—=5=
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management A=+—BILtEE » KREBHIEMH
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of FARAEESZSTHEEAE AE
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2014 and BEEREIEMNDBRETENET
2013 is set out below: EBRHWBEHAOT :
Manufacture and sale of Interests in
garments and textiles joint ventures Property leasing Total
HERHERK
Ré8m RELERE nEHg a8
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2003 2014 2013
“E-NF -F-ZF ZB-MF “T-ZF ZB-MF “F-ZF ZB-NF “E-ZF
$7000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr 77
Revenue from external customers RESFEFHRA 1,066,126 1326026 - - 8,006 7042 1,074,132 1333068
Inter-segment revenue AHEBBERA - - - - 2,346 2443 2,346 2443
Reportable segment revenue ZFEZHMAHUA 1,066,126 1326026 = - 10,352 9485 1,076,478 1335511
Reportable segment BETEHRNDH
(loss)/profit (B8) /27 (A2
(adjusted EBITDA) LIRS 3R
TEREHN
flg) (3,801) 59,25 18,515 (4821) 8,969 8,73 23,683 62,608
Interest income FEBA 2,275 2,255 - - - - 2,275 2,255
Finance costs RENRA (3,860)  (43%) = - = - (3,860)  (439)
Depreciation and amortisation 37 2 % # 8 (14,611)  (17213) - - - - (14811 (17213)
Impairment losses BEEERERE
on fixed assets (6,935) (8,504) - - - - (6,935) (8,504)
Reportable segment assets ATFE2HMALEE 619,468 630,932 638,810 610,118 326,783 300361 1,585,061 1541411
Additions to non-current EEREMER
segment assets during the year D HEE 2,915 12,468 - - - - 2915 12,468
Reportable segment liabilities AF2HMAHAE 195735 172278 - - - - 195735 172278
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) ... ... . 12, DEBE M) o
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit (b) EFERHDHBA ~ BFIHE
or loss, assets and liabilities B BEEREGBZHER
2014 2013
—E-—F —E-=
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue BETE2HRNDBBA 1,076,478 1,335,511
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEPEB B AR E I 8H (2,346) (2,443)
Consolidated turnover mMEE¥ER 1,074,132 1,333,068
Profit Ja F

Reportable segment profit derived from REKBIRAEZEF D I
Group’s external customers (adjusted A (FAEIMBRFE - BiE -

EBITDA) MEREBHENHKSE) 23,683 62,608
Finance costs & A (3,860) (4,398)
Share of losses of associates FEALEE N BB A (220) (398)
Impairment losses on fixed assets EEEERERE (6,935) (8,504)
Net valuation gains on investment REVELERSFHE

properties 19,257 44,905
Other revenue and net income HW AR EM R FEEE 7,353 4,879
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (14,611) (17,213)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBBHMREEER

expenses (6,409) (15,822)
Consolidated profit before taxation AR AR R 18,258 66,057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

12, 2| E (&)

(b) BEFEHRMNDIBWA ~ BERIRE
B BEREBBZYHER(#)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

92

2014 2013
—E-—mF —E-=
$’000 $°000
Fr Frr
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BETEHRNDBEE 1,585,061 1,541,411
Elimination of inter-segment DEEBBEEREHH
assets (93,007) (86,578)
1,492,054 1,454,833
Intangible assets BRERE 3,117 3,117
Interests in associates BN TR 1,912 2,096
Other financial assets HhemEE 7,381 7,069
Deferred tax assets EEFEHEE 2,403 2,454
Unallocated head office and ROBHRBREEEE
corporate assets 1,178 414
Consolidated total assets REEEH#RE 1,508,045 1,469,983
Liabilities =F
Reportable segment liabilities BFERNIIEE 195,735 172,278
Current tax payable FEAAREAEH 9,445 15,288
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTISBRE 13,596 9,043
Unallocated head office and ROBRIREEEE
corporate liabilities 1,977 1,447
Consolidated total liabilities HEBEBERE 220,753 198,056
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)
12, DARERE (A

(c) HWESHER

(c) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates and joint ventures and
prepayment for fixed assets (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of fixed assets, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets

and goodwill, and the location of operations, in the case of

TREJNBBEG)EAEERB IR
EEHRBA RIVAEEBREE
E-BEEE -BE HREEAQ
AREGECERRZRETEER
IR HEFRRBDEE] NibE
DEER o B T IRIRHER
BREBHMBME - FEFR

BEETNWEEEEMEHERE
BEENEBNENE  BFEE
REERESIENEEmEMm
E MRBEARREE D EE
mEMAREEEMEmE

interests in associates and joint ventures.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMNREFHERA REFRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-MmEFE —F-=F =®F-mF =%T-=
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F Fr F Fr
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (REBFRTH) 76,601 95,704 211,689 194,742
Europe 5@
— United Kingdom — % 164,058 209,110 = -
— Italy —EXF 134,150 176,323 - -
~ Other European countries —HEtEBNER 216,771 246,806 = -
Mainland China Hh B K BE 110,388 203,662 730,750 717,132
North America b EM
— United States —%H 162,334 191,930 = -
— Canada N 11,586 12,400 = -
Others Hith 198,244 197,133 6,746 7,436
997,531 1,237,364 737,496 724,568
1,074,132 1,333,068 949,185 919,310
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

13. FIXED ASSETS

13. Bl EEE

(a) The Group () *5H
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BEgE
fti BE it HEZER
8 2 k#E EEEE M REWE HELH ait
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAG A :
At | April 2012 RZZ-Z4MA-H 85475 206,202 111,245 402,922 168,616 2943 574,481
Exchange adjustments ERAR 260 1,337 568 2,165 262 17 2,444
Additions BE - 4330 8,057 12,387 - - 12,387
Disposals HE - (778) (3,283) (4,061) - - (4,061)
Fair value adjustment ATEERE - - - - 44,905 - 44,905
At 31 March 2013 R=F-=F
=A=t+-H 85,735 211,091 116,587 413413 213,783 2,960 630,156
Representing: %
Cost KA 61,969 211,091 116,587 389,647 - 2,960 392,607
Valuation - 1988 fhE- —RANE 23766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2013 fhE- Z%-=% - - - - 20378 - 28
85,735 201,091 116,587 413413 213,783 2,960 630,156

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EL3 KA WA W
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 £



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BIEEE (&)

() &&EE(#F)

Interest in

leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BEgE
fti BE it HEZER
8 2 k#E EEEE M REWE HELH ait
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAG A :
At | April 2013 RZZ-ZE@A-H 85735 211,091 116,587 413413 213,783 2,960 630,156
Exchange adjustments ERAR 731 3,147 1,213 5,091 736 49 5,876
Additions BE - 1,848 1,937 3,785 - - 3,785
Disposals HE - (1,471 (2,350) (3.821) - - (3.821)
Fair value adjustment ATEERE - - - - 19,257 - 19,257
At 31 March 2014 R-F-mF
=A=t+-H 86,466 214,615 117,387 418,468 233,776 3,009 655,253
Representing: %
Cost B 62,700 214,615 117,387 394,702 - 3,009 397,711
Valuation - 1988 fhE- —RANE 23766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2014 fhE- —F-R% - - - - 3T - W
86,466 214,615 117,387 418,468 233,776 3,009 655,253
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... . 13. BREEM) .,
(a) The Group (continued) (a) X5HE (&)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating

ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
#EER BEgE
fti BE Hth HEZAR

kgF k% ETEE M REME BELHM At

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Accumulated amortisation, Zit## T8

depreciation and RHfE
impairment:

At | April 2012 WZB-ZFMA-H 43408 164,585 92,532 300,525 - 1,167 301,692
Exchange adjustments EiAz 151 988 382 1,521 - 7 1,528
Charge for the year REEHERITE 2,303 6,955 7,89 17,154 - 59 17,213
Weritten back on disposals HERER - (78) (1,147) (1,890) - - (1,890)
Impairment loss HERSR - 8,504 - 8,504 - - 8,504
At 31 March 2013 R=%-=%&

ZA=t-8H 45,862 180,289 99,663 325814 - 1,233 327,047
At | April 2013 RZZE-ZEMA-H 4586 180,289 99,663 325,814 - 1233 327,047
Exchange adjustments ERRZ 424 2,628 970 4,022 - 19 4,041
Charge for the year REERHERITE 1,593 5317 7,640 14,550 - 6! 14611
Written back on disposals LERER - (988) (1,739) @77 - - .77)
Impairment loss HEEE - 6,935 - 6,935 - - 6,935
At 31 March 2014 R=Z2-mF

ZA=t-8H 47879 194,181 106,534 348,594 - 1313 349,907
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-mE

ZA=t-H 38,587 20,434 10,853 69,874 233,776 1,69 305,346
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=F

ZA=t-8 39,873 30,802 16,924 87,599 213,783 1,727 303,109
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . . .. ... . 13. BIEEE () oo
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
buildings
held for Plant and Other Investment
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total  properties Total
BEEAN WE Heth
THRET k#E EE4E M RENE =
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr fr fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RASGE
At | April 2012 RZE-Z¥MA-A 43276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
Additions e - - 340 340 - 340
Fair value adjustment NYEEAR - - - - 65,585 65,585
At 31 March 2013 RZE-Z§=fA=+-H 43276 146 28,179 71,601 255,590 327,191
Representing: R&:
Cost HA 28714 146 28,179 57,039 - 57,039
Valuation - 1988 - - A ANE 14,562 - - 14,562 - 14,562
Valuation - 2013 ftE- —5-=F - - - - 255,590 255,590
43276 146 28,179 71,601 255,590 327,191
Cost or valuation: RAG A :
At | April 2013 W-E-=£mA-A 43276 146 28,179 71,601 255,590 327,191
Additions wE - - 147 147 - 147
Disposal e - - (306) (306) - (306)
Transfer from investment ERARENE
properties 8,013 - - 8,013 (8,013) -
Transfer to investment gﬁé%&ﬁ%%
properties (1,459) - - (1,459) 7,122 5,663
Fair value adjustment AYEERE - - - - 25,967 25,967
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=B=1-H 49,830 146 28,020 779% 280,666 358,662
Representing: R&:
Cost BA 35,268 146 28,020 63,434 - 63,434
Valuation - 1988 fiE- —ANNE 14,562 - - 14,562 - 14,562
Valuation - 2014 fiE- ZE-IE - - - - 280,666 280,666
49,830 146 28,020 77,99 280,666 358,662
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—NF=A=1—HLFE (UETH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... . 13. BREEM) .,
(b) The Company (continued) (b) ART (#)
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total  properties Total
BEERK BE Hth
tHREET k#E  ETEE N RENE L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r Fr r

Accumulated amortisation, Zit## 7€

depreciation and R

impairment:
At | April 2012 R=F--#MA-H 17,640 146 24,503 42,289 - 42,289
Charge for the year REERHERAE 724 - 1,309 2,033 - 2,033
At 31 March 2013 g e 18,364 146 25812 443122 - 44312
At | April 2013 R=Z-=EMA-A 18,364 146 25812 44312 - 44312
Charge for the year REERERITE 3,028 - 1,080 4,108 - 4,108
Weritten back on disposals HERED - - (306) (306) - (306)
Transfer to investment ERERENE

properties (619) - - (619) - (619)
At 31 March 2014 R-F-RME=A=t+-H 20773 146 26,586 47,505 - 47,505
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-ME=A=+-H 29,057 - 1,434 30,491 280,666 311,157
At 31 March 2013 R=E-=£=fA=t+-H 24912 - 2,367 27,219 255,590 282,869
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

- Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level | inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level |, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs

13. BIEEE (#)

(c) MENLTEETE

()

RFEEER
TREJNAEEYXE 2R
FEE ZAFEEREER
BREEMHEENE ¥R
(EBYBRELERDE 135K
[AFEEGSE/EERZ2=1R
DAFPEEERIE - AFE
B ERM 22 B EMGE
FAERRABE 2 TEEN
RERMMEE :

- B-RBIMEE:EXRA
FE—RBIEE - AR
EESEERFTEAR
SERRT 5 L IRE (R
ERE) RFAELTE
=

- FEIRBMEE:RAS
ZHRBIEIE - BDREERT
BE BN ATERY
B BRRAERTT
BEYBRFEQITE
B TUERBELE
EEETHERNEE

- FE=RAEE:HKAE

RATERBIERTE
NP EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-_FT-ME=A=1T—RLLFE (ETiT)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

13. BIEEE (#)

(c) MENDVEETE A

(i) R FEEERE)

Fair value at
31 March
2014 Fair value measurements as at
RZB-MF 31 March 2014 categorised into
ZA=t-H R-B-ME=A=+-AH
ZRTEE AVEEFEIRAUTRE
Level | Level 2 Level 3
R FZRE FZRE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F Fr Fr Fr
The Group KEE
Investment properties: REME
~ Mainland China —HEIKE 46,116 - - 46,116
- Hong Kong -5 187,660 - - 187,660
The Company NN
Investment properties: REME:
- Hong Kong -B# 280,666 - - 280,666

During the year ended 3| March 2014, there were no
transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the

end of the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 3|1 March 2014. The valuations of investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were carried out by independent firms of surveyors,
Knight Frank Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited
respectively, who have among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The Group’s management have discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at the

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . ... . 13. BEEE M) ..o
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (c) MENAFEEE(HF)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) BEE=REILFEETEZE
HIE#
The Group KE
Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
FTUER
hER % HEE #HE MmETIH
Investment properties REME
- Mainland China — B KR Market Adjusted RMB23,230 RMB26,823
comparison price per to
approach sq. m. RMB30,975
mHELkEE BYRAKZ
- Hong Kong -&8 Market Adjusted $2,070 to $5,567
comparison price per $7,340
approach sq. ft.
mELEE BFARZ
Income Average $6.9 $6.9
capitalisation ~ market rent
approach per sq. ft.
RAERL per month
HEE ¥HEA
BFAR
mERE
Capitalisation 4% 4%
rate
ERct®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

TS5

13. BIEEE (#)

(c) MENQIFEESE(H)
(i) BEE=ZRFLFEMEE

(continued) HIEH ()
The Company b NN
Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
FTUER
hER % HEE #HE MmETIH
Investment properties REME
- Hong Kong -&58 Market Adjusted $2,070 to $2,380
comparison price per $7,340
approach sq. ft.
mEkERE BFRRZ
REER
Income Average $6.9 $6.9
capitalisation ~ market rent
approach per sq. ft.
' ON-v:¥(d per month
HEE FHEA
B¥AR
mEAE
Capitalisation 4% 4%
rate
ERMebeR

The fair value of investment properties located in
Mainland China is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent asking price of
comparable properties on a price per square meter
basis, adjusted for quality and location of the buildings
and income potential. Higher the value of adjusted price

will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square feet basis,
adjusted for quality and location of the buildings. Higher
the value of adjusted price will result in a higher fair

value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined using income capitalisation
approach by capitalising the rent derived from the
existing tenancies with reference to market rent and
the provision for any reversionary income potential.
The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market
rental growth, occupancy rate and quality and location
of the buildings. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rent and negatively correlated

to the risk-adjusted capitalisation rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation gains on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Exchange adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in other comprehensive income in “exchange

reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties held at the end of the

reporting period.

13. BIEEE (#)

(c) MENDVEETE A

(i)

BHEE=RF N -FEEE
HIEH ()
ETHRERBNREMEN
NP EETIERABRAERL
FAEAEE - ZAERKE
BEHANEASRAER
£ ASRHERSE UK
FTARMERQN B MmE T 8E
AREECFE -HERAE
T EERAANERL
L ZEREZEFHTISHE
HESER  HERNET
MEEMBHEEZFLHA
Z- AFVEEFEEDEME
T2ELEE  BHEEARR
BEENEA L RERIE
& o

REMENDFEEARE
ARGEERBRENIRE
MG ERSEFRE]

REWENE LAZRERIRN
Htb 2 H W R 2 E 5
e

REEEBRTRANFAE
WEIREAEERNEEH
FEmE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . ... . 13. BEBEE M) ..o
(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as d) PMEZEEFEINOT
follows:
The Group The Company
rEHE ¥ N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-QmE —T-=Ff C"—B-NF —T-=F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr F FT F
Medium term leases FRERE A
—in Hong Kong &% 208,680 190,658 309,723 280,502
— outside Hong Kong - & BIE 65,379 64,725 = -

274,059 255,383 309,723 280,502

Representing: &
Land and buildings TiREF 38,587 39,873 29,057 24,912
Investment properties REW* 233,776 213,783 280,666 255,590
272,363 253,656 309,723 280,502
Interest in leasehold land BEKEHEZ
held for own use under BEAHEE i
operating leases 1,696 1,727 - -
274,059 255,383 309,723 280,502
(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) UKREHESHNHANEEEE
The Group and the Company lease out investment properties REERADATDURLEHESL
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial HBREYE - HESHNERA
period of one to seven years, with an option to renew the H—RAE—SFZ2tFE - WEAFHE
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. BEFARABEYN  EEFAEHE
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. HNERHEFHR - AEHES
HNIETBESERS -
All properties held under operating leases that would FFERASREYETEUREHE
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are EEENYE T BEIREYE -

classified as investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

U]

(continued)
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

13. BIEEE (#)

(e) URBHEANHLHENEETEE

(4&)
FEERBETABRBRNEEASE
BHNEHREUNREHEENT
BAEBWT :

2014 2013
—E-OF —Z2-=
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
Within | year —FR 7,594 7,845
After | year but within 5 years —FRELFR 14,496 3,147
22,090 10,992
Impairment losses on fixed assets nH BEEEEREEE

During the years ended 3| March 2014 and 2013, the Group
underwent a restructuring of its operations in Mainland
China for the manufacture and sale of garments and textiles
division pursuant to which certain factories were relocated
and certain fixed assets have since become idle. Management
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s fixed assets
taking into consideration the usability of those fixed assets. As
a result of this assessment, an impairment loss of $6,935,000
(2013: $8,504,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 3| March
2014. The estimates of recoverable amount were based on
the assets’ fair values less costs of disposal, determined by

reference to the recent transactions.

BE-Z-NFR=-Z—Z=F
A=t HALEER  KEE
EHERPEARELENRE
REERKESHBR DI 2%
¥ RIBRZEBEHRELER
ETEERAHE-BEEEBRIE
EE&EEMTAEFTEETR
EEBE B REE-Z—N
F=ZA=+—-HLELEE BE
/£7186,935,0000T (=& — =4 :
8,504,000T) EEFAE B R KW
B JNEHELS RIEEE
ERBNRZS  REAFEEH
BEERAREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS e 14. |BEEE ...,
Club debentures 2%
The Group and the Company
REBRERQH
2014 2013
—E—mF —EF—=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
At the beginning and REDRFER
the end of the year 3,117 3,117
The directors consider that the recoverable amount of the ESEARSECTREHEBRBHE
club debentures exceeds its carrying amount and therefore no HE BEMIAEZEEHEE - BES
impairment is necessary. The recoverable amount of the club EoOWEEENSEER_-_Z—
debentures is estimated by reference to its current open market EN—_E—=FE=Z=A=t+—Hz22H
value less cost of disposal as at 3|1 March 2014 and 2013. TIZBEBEERAR
15.GOODWILL U5, BB
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—E2-ImF —2-=F
$°000 $°000
F Fr
Cost: %N
At the beginning and the end REDRFEL
of the year 2,177 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and ZitBHRAERSE
impairment losses:
At the beginning and the end REDRFL
of the year 2,177 2,177
Carrying amount: IRE&%E:
At the beginning and the end REDRER
of the year = -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. MIBARKRE

The Company

PN
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=

$°000 $°000

Fir Fir

Unlisted shares, at cost LRS- R 32,255 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries UM B D RFRIE 68,257 68,181
100,512 100,426
Less: Impairment loss o OREEE (21,099) (21,112)
79,413 79,314

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
not expected to be recoverable within one year from the end of

the reporting period.

Impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries represent the
write down of the carrying values of the investment cost and

receivables from certain subsidiaries to their recoverable amounts.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group
at 31 March 2014. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

MELARMRARERRIEER T
ME YFEHREEBE - FRAFTER
[E] o

MEBARRENHEBRERIRE
AR W E T B QR RENIRE
EEHETWEHE -

TRHEINR-_ZF-—WFE=ZF=1+—
A - HAEEXE EEIRERE

HECIEWBARZHRE KRS
BEBIN AEAZROGREER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

Proportion of

ownership interest

BEESEIL
Place of

incorporation/ Particulars of Group’s Held Held

establishment issued and effective by the by a
Name of company and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity

3 Vs ERITRER r&EE HALF H—HE
RNEEH REEHE B BERER =20 ARRE TREK
Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong 2,500,000 shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
ERIHABRAT Y 2,500,000 REER
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Garment
BERBEARDLT & 3,000,0008% manufacturing and
investment holding
RTREE R
REER
Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100% Garment
RS BBER A A R 10,000/% manufacturing
RRRE
Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The People’s HK$75,600,000 100% - 100% Knitting and dyeing
Limited Republic of China of fabrics and
SHSE (BN BRA T (“the PRC”) manufacturing
H of garments
R R
RETRRE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$17,800,000 100% - 100% Garment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd HE manufacturing
BERIHK (BN R A BRI
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100% - 100% Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd H manufacturing
EHIHER(B8)BRAF MRS
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$4,000,000 100% - 100% Garment
(Guangxi) Co., Ltd e manufacturing
ERIAX (EE) BRA R RS
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69% - 69% Garment
&N manufacturing
BREE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100% 100% - Garment
®E wholesaling
PR B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

16. B ARRE (H)

# These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in

the PRC. The English translation of the names is for reference only.

The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

No subsidiaries of the Group have material non-controlling interest

at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

* BRELRARPERIZENEE R
HoRELEIURNEHEAM K
NBENEFERSEZ -

R-Z-WNER-T-=4=7
=t+-B AEELEHEAANEE

REFFERR R o

The Group
KE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E-=F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Share of net assets EBREESE 1,912 2,096

The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2014, which are

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not

available, are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

REZZE-OEF=ZA=Z+—-HZHEERQ

ATHEMT MRS

BELNRIEA

EMSERENFLTLOR -BRBEEHE
/o AR/ EER -

Proportion of

ownership interest

EEEZAAL

Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held

establishment issued and effective by the by a
Name of associate and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity

B3 BRITRER xEE HALAR M — K
BenratH REEHH iEN ERER 58 ARFE TEEK
Guangzhou Top Yield Garment The PRC HK$6,000,000 33.3% - 33.3% Garment
Limited F manufacturing
ENEERKER AT MRS
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial The PRC RMB10,000,000 20% - 20% Garment
Company Limited 3 manufacturing
BRABEXEARAT and retailing
RRREREE
# The associates are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the # REBERNRARBRPEARLZPIE

PRC. The English translation of the names is for reference only. The

official names of these entities are in Chinese.

EREDE ZELEHUDTIER
At RXBENEZERSE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) .. .. . 7. MEAREm (F) .
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity LEFBHME NI UERENGEH
method in the consolidated financial statements, and considered to BHRERIER  BRENMSHRB AL
be not individually material. TEK-

Aggregate information of the associates BELARANSH M BEREE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —EF—-=
$°000 $°000
Fr F
Aggregate carrying amount of the FEMBBRRANBE QTN
associates in the consolidated SETEREE
financial statements 1,912 2,096
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of REBEELEE ATRE
the associates’ losses from continuing REEBBERZEWRSE
operations and total comprehensive BEHNETTSE
income for the year (220) (398)
18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES ... . 18. REERER
The Group The Company
v 3 NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mE —Z2-= —B2-mE ZE-Z=
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F Fr Fr Fr
Unlisted investments, at cost FLETRE  BRAE - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets RiEEEFRE 638,810 610,118 - -
638,810 610,118 230,818 230,818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) = 18, EELERE (M) ..
Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures, which is AEEUESEEINGREMBERERIER
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial PEELERSHEBUT

statements, are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

RERBSEIL
Place of Group’s Held
establishment effective by the Principal activity
Name of joint venture and business interest Company
|58 rEE B2 F
SELEER AR i B BERER o] TEXR
Wouxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd The PRC 49% 49% Investment holding
EBH-RREFRAA HEl REZR
(Note 1)
(H1E1)
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49% - Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd B textile products
EMEIGHE (BL) BRQF* B mEE
Allied Textiles Co., Ltd The PRC 49% - Manufacturing of
A B RO A A E garments and textiles
B Ak K 45 48 R 3
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd The PRC 49% - Manufacture and
BEHERIBEGHBERAA HEl sale of textiles
WERHEGHR
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd The PRC 49% - Manufacturing of
RANBHBERAA* HE garments and textiles
Wouxi Flex Textile Co., Ltd The PRC 36.75% - Trading of textiles
ESERRIGBRAR QT FE HHEmES
* Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd * B —RREERATIZEEEERN
BT
*k Subsidiary of Allied Textiles Co., Ltd which holds 75% of ownership w HEEGEBERATRIZHBAT  #
interest BH7S%E =
Note I: Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. is established by the MizEl - BB —RREGREATABANATE
Company and other joint venture partners in Wuxi. It holds the Hh S EHENEHR L 2% -
above-mentioned subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in the HEE XA ZHBLAR  FE
production of medium range to high graded compact yarn, special RELEPREZEEREZHYD B
textile products and garment products. B BERMEKER °
All of the joint ventures are sino-foreign equity joint ventures FFESENESAENTDPRERKIL 2 I
established in the PRC. The English translation of the names of all CEREPE ZELEHUAT R
of the joint ventures is for reference only. The official names of i EXHENgZEHEE
these entities are in Chinese.
All the joint ventures in which the Group participates are unlisted NEBZHEWTESELE HAE
corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available. MEHMEWIE LT AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

Summarised financial information of Wuxi No.| Cotton Investment

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, and a reconciliation to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

below:

18, R EER (#F

BE-RREARATARENELT
BHREHBE  REGSUBHRERD
BREEZHRENFRUT :

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Gross amount of the joint ventures’ cEL¥AE
Non-current assets kREBEE 1,166,811 1,230,580
Current assets RBEE 742,610 789,325
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (18,433) (23,970)
Current liabilities RBAEE (585,784) (747,999)
Equity = (1,305,204) (1,247,936)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: BEETLANEEREE
Cash and cash equivalents HERAEEEY 170,757 113,362
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade RBERMES(TEEEN
and other payables and provisions) IR R HMES R RS (226,926) (264,163)
Revenue A 1,560,447 1,657,186
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations AFEEREREER
and total comprehensive income BRSO (BB REFEE
for the year TEHKRHLRE 36,443 (9,577)
Included in the above profit/(loss): BIEE LMAER (EE) ¢
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (114,028) (107,521)
Interest income FMEWA 1,783 1,715
Interest expense FEXH (9,962) (14,339)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FRER () 5TA (13,041) 2,763
Reconciled to the Group’s interests AEEREELEES
in the joint ventures 2 ¥ iR
Gross amounts of net assets of EECEEEFHELE
the joint ventures 1,305,204 1,247,936
Non-controlling interests of the joint ventures & & ¥ IFER IR RERE (1,510) (2,798)
1,303,694 1,245,138
Group’s effective interest rEBEERES 49% 49%
Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements RESHHRBRRIEME 638,810 610,118
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS s 19 SfEMEE
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-QmE 2= —B-mE ZE-Z=
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr F
Held-to-maturity debt securities: BEEHHEEES
Listed outside Hong Kong EBRHLED
(note 28(e)(ii) (Hfi228(e) (i) 1,939 1,940 1,939 1,940
Available-for-sale equity securities: AREERERS .
Unlisted, at cost FET BRAE 3,028 3,028 855 855
Listed outside Hong Kong, EBREMNET  BZHE
at market value (frzt28(e)(i))
(note 28(e)(i)) 4,587 4,274 4,587 4,274
7,615 7,302 5,442 5,129
9,554 9,242 7,381 7,069
Less: Impairment loss R EER (2,173) (2,173) - -
7,381 7,069 7,381 7,069
Market value of listed securities IhESTE
(note 28(e)(ii) (Ha228(e)(ii) 6,632 6319 6,632 6319
Fair value of individually BRIREZ THEE
impaired available-for-sale BREEZES 2 ATERE
equity securities 4,054 3,725 4,054 3,725
As at 3| March 2014 certain of the Group’s listed available-for- NR-TE—NE=HA=+—H ' K&EE
sale equity securities were individually determined to be impaired EHENTHEEREZESEATERE
on the basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost and MED| A EBEBEATHERERAK
adverse changes in the market in which these investees operated LT HXEKREBZREREWRE M
which indicated that the cost of the Group’s investment in them EHBE ZEREZRESBERE
may not be recovered. Impairment losses on these investments HRKME IO ETHRREERARE
were recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set o

out in note | (k)(i).
The held-to-maturity debt securities are neither past due nor EEZDH o EREHS EEmAE R

impaired. B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

20. INVENTORIES i, 29 TEE
(a) Inventories in the statement of financial position (a) FERMBERAKREIE:
comprise:
The Group The Company
rEHE ¥ N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-QmE —T-=Ff C"—B-NF —T-=F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr F FT F
Raw materials FR 1 14,545 14,129 63 324
Work in progress TR 85,275 53,223 32,287 17,270
Finished goods B @ 15,434 10,988 3,489 4,941
115,254 78,340 35,839 22,535
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) FEHEIEZHERBELERZ
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as AW DHFMT :
follows:
The Group
xE
2014 2013
—E-nmE —E-=F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEREE 917,750 1,121,959
Write-down of inventories FE#MUR 1,255 364
Reversal of write-down of inventories 75 MOR B =l (2,153) (11,345)
916,852 1,110,978
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years BAEFEZESHMBRE NDRERK
arose due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment ERREARREEZEREWNE
products by reference to the sales made during the year and MENZLEDR & EE W45
subsequent to the year end. N EF B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21, BRI H i B WK

The Group The Company
r&HE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-pmE Z%-= —E-pmFE ZE2-=
$’000 $000 $’000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade debtors FEWUIR K 73,455 89,716 17,261 21,295
Bills receivable EYRE 58,519 61,334 39,867 32,688
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RRRRE (3,745) (3,753) - (8)
128,229 147,297 57,128 53,975
Deposits, prepayments and HERB:LE V7
other debtors Hit R 27,721 41,481 5,074 12,171
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE S - - 93,420 138,784
Amounts due from related FEWEEQRRE
companies (note 31(c)) (H1&#31(c)) 845 2,490 189 255
Amounts due from joint BhEELERE
ventures (note 31(c)) (Ht&£31(c)) 1,940 1,475 - -
Amount due from an associate FE — & N RIFRE
(note 31(c)) (H1&#31(c)) 17 - = -
Derivative financial instruments BEEREREHHIA
held as cash flow hedging ZITESMIA
instruments (note 28(c)(i)) (H1F28(c)(i)) - 52 - 52
158,752 192,795 155,811 205,237

Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other

receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as an

expense within one year.

The amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies, joint

ventures and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and

recoverable on demand.

REE KA DT 2B K10 EWERK
REMEWRRIERR - FRAKRE R
BASHAX -

BWHELR -BELR - A& hHE
R-—BEQRARERRBER %
ME - A FRBAEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) = 21. BURARHEMBUR (&) .
(a) Ageing analysis (a) RO
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of NEEH BEXZAHRNK
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade RIZREBEEWERRAREK
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of ZE (B ABHRERREME
allowance of doubtful debts, is as follows: W) HERER DM T ©
The Group The Company
rEE NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE Z%-= —E-pmE —E2-=

$’000 $°000 $’000 $°000

Fr F Fr Fr

Within | month —BANR 65,708 61,751 19,238 16,054

| to 2 months —Z-f8A 19,348 24,944 8,198 9,753

2 to 3 months —Z={8A 28,597 45,001 24,577 23,010

3 to 4 months ZEN{EA 6,436 10,998 2,742 4,067

Over 4 months mEA L 8,140 4,603 2,373 1,091

128,229 147,297 57,128 53,975
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 30 to 120 FEWERR K ENEEEEER S
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s EIENAREH - HFEAE
credit policy are set out in note 28(a). BENEERRNFERIIAME

28(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) EREFREKVEEEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills TEWER R ER R 2 BB E
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless B AEESEIANEBERSD -
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, fHEREEHEEBRKERIEN
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade TSR HBEEESEE
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note | (k)(i)). A FE U BR 3% &% FE UL Z 45 o B 85

(BEMEEIK)G) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FRARZERBENE S (BIEE
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is BEEEEIESGD) AT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
r&HE VAN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF-mE —T-= —E2-mE Z%-=
$’000 $000 $’000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year RE] 3,753 6,283 8 235
Impairment loss recognised REFBEZER
(note 5(c)) (Ht&t5(c)) - 291 - 291
Uncollectible amounts written off WEATKE &5 (8) (2,821) (8) (518)
At the end of the year i S 3,745 3,753 - 8
At 31 March 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s trade R-ZEBE-—NME=ZBR=+—H" K
debtors and bills receivable of $3,745,000 (2013: $3,753,000) SEERA DA D 5 £53,745,0007T
and $Nil (2013: $8,000), respectively, were individually (=& — =% :3,753,0007t) K0
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired JT(ZZ— =4 :8,0007T) ZFEW
receivables related to customers that were in financial RRRERZEHEENEEAD
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables BRE - ZERMNER I BN
are expected not to be recoverable. Consequently, ZEFPER MmMEREIGHETE
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $3,745,000 (2013: 6 T RE IR B 22 FE IR » B Ut
$3,753,000) and $Nil (2013: $8,000), respectively, were ERERZEINRZREBEED
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over Bl £3,745,000c (ZE—=F :
these balances. 3,753,0007T) ROT (=& —=%:

8,0007T) - AKEI ERZE L
BRI EEAERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 21. BRI E B (A). .
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) MRBEZERERREREE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that WHEERRBEERALRBEN
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be FEWERREREERE DM
impaired are as follows: T
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-MmEF —T-=F =F-OF =2-=
$’000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired BEARRRE 108,713 129,493 50,914 49,405
Less than 61 days past due BRI B 12,955 13,233 4,666 4,428
61 to 90 days past due EH6I 2908 447 1,239 134 71
More than 90 days past due BE90H £ 6,114 3,332 1,414 71
19,516 17,804 6,214 4,570
128,229 147,297 57,128 53,975
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate 10 428 80 A o R 1L o B U BR TR B R
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent UMM HEZE B -

history of default.

118

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 21, BURAREwBUK (A) .
(d) Impairment of amount due from an associate (d) EW—EeEAaFRERE
During the year ended 31 March 2014, an associate was in BE-Z-NF=ZA=+—H
financial difficulty and management assessed that the amount EFEER E—BEEQTHMK
due from the associate is expected to be irrecoverable. Mg SEBILEERERE
Accordingly, an impairment loss on amount due from the e QT MRIER T EWE o
associate of $242,000 (2013: $4,171,000) was made in the H it o R {E & 242,000 (=&
financial statements during the year. — =% :4,171,000t) EFEF A
B SRR AERT o
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .. 2. BRERASF®/Y. ..
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () BERBELEEYERE:
The Group The Company
r5E AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-mF =FT-=F =%-BF =F-=F
$7000 $000 $7000 $000
FT F F F
Cash at bank and in hand RITEMERRRE 275,070 270,015 193,686 142,387
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) = 22. RERBESFEY M) . ..
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BBARFELEEBLFABRS
generated from operations: ZHEE:
2014 2013
—E-{EF —E-=F
Note $7000 $000
Wt i 77
Profit before taxation BRBEADE R 18,258 66,057
Adjustments for: wE
Dividend income from unlisted FrmREESF2REBA
equity securities 4 (429) (389)
Interest income FEWA 4 (2,275) (2,255)
Net loss on disposals of fixed assets HEEEEERBTE 4 382 1,790
Finance costs AME A 5(2) 3,860 4,398
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in BABEE T AN EH
leasehold land 5(c) 61 59
Depreciation wE 5(c) 14,550 17,154
Share of losses of associates L E N REE 17 220 398
Share of (profits)/losses of EiEagtE 08 /FE
joint ventures (18,515) 4,821
Impairment losses on fixed assets ETEERERSSE 13(f) 6,935 8,504
Net valuation gains on investment REMEERKEFR
properties 13(a) (19,257) (44,905)
Foreign exchange losses EBHEX 1,525 264
Operating profit before changes in EEESREA 2 KERF
working capital 5,315 55,896
Changes in working capital: EEELRE:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BFE M HD (36,914) 49,005
Decrease in trade and other receivables PR R E b B U EUR 33,991 136,456
Increase/(decrease) in trade and AR R E RN
other payables B/ (F) 25,521 (70,494)
Decrease in provision for long RERBSEBRHD
service payments (1,613) (10,193)
Cash generated from operations KeExBHmERe 26,300 160,670
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. BNERRRAEMBEMSK

The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-pmE Z%-= —E-pmFE ZE2-=
$’000 $000 $’000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade creditors PSR 94,227 82,372 40,366 33,498
Bills payable BAEE 1,915 3,523 214 1,132
96,142 85,895 40,580 34,630
Accrued charges and other creditors ErERAREMENSRK 76,017 63,085 26,382 19,846
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHT B 2 B FRIE - - 4,471 4319
Amounts due to related companies B EEDRRE
(note 31(c)) (H1&#31(c)) 3,938 1,483 330 370
Amounts due to joint ventures EReEbENE
(note 31(c)) (H1&#31(c)) 14 148 13 13
Amount due to an associate @ﬁ—ﬂﬁ‘f?%ﬂaﬁlﬁ
(note 31(c)) (H1a#31(c)) 220 199 = -
Derivative financial instruments held BEEREREHHIR
as cash flow hedging instruments ZITEEMIA
(note 28(c)(i) (H1#28(c)(i)) 79 - 79 -
176,410 150,810 71,861 59,178

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

FERNERRREEMRERER
—FAEEYIRIABWARE

‘A

The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, joint ventures

and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

BB EAE -

EAKEBLAR -BELR - &R
R-—BENARERRBEER %
FE - WFRBAMEEFEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period:

CESRRREMENR(E)

REFERBEEENERIAREMEN
RNENRARENSRERE DO
T

The Group The Company
r5H FYNE|

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE ZZ-ZF ZE-mFE =—T-=F
$000 $000 $°000 $000
FT FT F F
Current K@ 50,937 46,610 21,089 22,939
Less than 61 days past due BRI B 33,610 29,621 18,524 11,013
61 to 90 days past due BH61HZE90R 4,290 6,183 423 251
More than 90 days past due BH90R UL 7,305 3,481 544 427
45,205 39,285 19,491 11,691
96,142 85,895 40,580 34,630

The Group’s general payment terms are 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Therefore, the balances above which are classified as
current are mostly within 90 days from the invoice date.

. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to June 2012). The
employer’s contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme in Hong Kong for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employee contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of
forfeited employer’s contributions or refunded to the employer.

The employees of subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the
required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 25. IR RRFAI AT EH
....... B N AN AL PO S T O s e
(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position (a) MBRRRATHEREFREHRS
represents:
The Group The Company
&M ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-QmF —T-=F Z=%-OF =T-=F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr FT FIT Fr
Provision for Hong Kong AEERBAGHERE
Profits Tax for the year 7,132 7,891 2,100 2,348
Provisional Profits Tax paid ERNEHFIEH (5,966) (5,784) (1,805) (2,201)
1,166 2,107 147
Provision of tax outside EBGHNERE
Hong Kong 8,279 13,181 - -
Net tax payable FE AL IE R AR 9,445 15,288 147
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) ERIELFSH (EE) &E:

rEH

BEREWBEMR N RERH
EEFFEH (&) BB
AR MAFENEBM

(i)  The Group (i)
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows: T :
Undistributed
profits of
Revaluation  Depreciation Provision for ~ subsidiaries
of investment offixed ~ Provision for  long service and joint Cash flow
properties assets  inventories payments ventures hedge Total
i} Vi)
RE  BRKE REERE  A¥EE  BeNE
KEES i BEEE R AAEEA 8 &
§000 §000 §000 §000 $000 §000 $000

iz i i i iz iz i

Deferred ta arsig from: blid 7 0

Acl April 2012 H-2-2%MmB-7 11514 i (6028 1) 48 - 3450
Exchange adjustments Eigg b (19 (1§ 0l) - - )
(Credited)charged to proft o loss EERAGIA) /1B (3754 1757 4162 2108 (L13) - 314l
Charged to reserves ERENR - - - - - 9 9
Ac31 March 2013 H-8-Z%251-8 780 1985 (1862 (5,40) 3705 9 6589
A Aprl 2013 H-8-zEEE-7 7812 1985 (1682) (504) 3708 y 6569
Exchange adjustments EjgE 19 (39 (] o - - #)
Chargedi(credited) to profit o loss EERRAR/ (3rA) 7 (13) 1782 4 2612 - 461
Credited to reserves ERETA - - - - - ) )
A3l March 2014 H-%-mE=A=1-A 7948 1815 (14) (4730) 8317 (15) 11,193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—NF=A=1—HLFE (UETH)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i)  The Company
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |

25. MBARR KA TGS (&)

(b) BRRELFREH (BE) &
(%)
(i) b AYT
EEMBERRRERNIEL
B (BE) /BENAR
BHRMEAEENEBOT !

Depreciation of Cash flow

fixed assets hedge Total
EEEENRE REREHNW Bt
$000 $000 $000
F F Fr

Deferred tax arising from: EEFEFHXE
At | April 2012 R=ZZ--FWNA—H 4,012 - 4,012
Credited to profit or loss REBRFA (162) - (162)
Charged to reserves HRENR - 9 9
At 31 March 2013 R-EB-=%=ZA=+-H 3,850 9 3,859
At | April 2013 RZE-=FEMA-H 3,850 9 3,859
Charged to profit or loss EREARTR 610 - 610
Credited to reserves RRETA - (24) (24)
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-NE=A=+-A 4,460 (15) 4,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the statements of financial position

25. MIBMRRKRATSNFESR (&

(b) SRIBELFEH (EE) AfF:

(#4%)
(iii) B B K e H AR

The Group The Company
AKE ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=f C-B-QmE —Z2-=F%
$’000 $000 $’000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Net deferred tax assets HEBMRRREIN
recognised in the statement BERSHEERE
of financial position (2,403) (2,454) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities B MR R
recognised in the statement EEREHEETFE
of financial position 13,596 9,043 4,445 3,859
11,193 6,589 4,445 3,859

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $112,515,000 (2013: $50,543,000)
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities.
Tax losses amounting to $6,033,000 (2013: $5,639,000) do
not expire under the relevant current tax legislation, while
the remaining tax losses amounting to $106,482,000 (2013:
$44,904,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries will expire

before 2019, in five years after they are incurred.

() AERWEEFREREE -

RIBFNMEE ()W ETEER » A
SEEEARE THE LT AR
HNEBRIAEENELERESHE
EB#I112515000T (ZE—=
£ 1 50,543,0007T) © HRTEHHES
BERCHEAEREMS B
HEAZEBUIRERRER
BaEMNz TEEMRE - RIZEEE
BOIBBEEN TEHRHNBE
BB A 6,033,000 (=T — =
% 15,639,0007T) ¢ T Fl &R Y
FEHBEATDELENHRBEERS
$£106,482,000T (—ZE— =% :
44,904,0007T ) #8 7 5% &5 18 4= 7
BHEHE R-T—NFAEH-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

26, RABRBEER

126

The Group The Company
rEH NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE ZE-Z —E-mE ZE-=
$000 $000 $°000 $000
F F Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year RE 22,915 33,108 1,708 2,843
Exchange adjustments ERAZE 387 125 - -
Provision made/(reversed) FRE/ (BE) 6,918 (981) (480) (1,135)
Less: (Payments)/refund WER (R EE

during the year ME (8,918) (9,337) 121 -
At the end of the year RE& 21,302 22915 1,349 1,708

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group and the
Company are obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group and the
Company. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group and the
Company that are attributable to contributions made by the Group
and the Company. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund

the above remaining obligations.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on

the employees’ final salary and years of service.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EL3 KA WA W
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS . . 27. BE WERRE ...
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZERIDZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBEGEERSHERIB M
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set VEBRESRYURIANGESE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details mBEIR o NNA T RE BB A K
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of WOREIRFERZEEFEFN
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set T
out below:
Land and
Capital Investment buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation ~ Hedging  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Rx RE tHREF
ke ROEE BERE EMEE EMEE UORE  REER GH

Note $000  §000 000 $000  $000  §000 SO0 $000
iG] 13 7z 7z 7z 123 7z 7z 7z

Balance at | April 2012 RZB-ZFMA-B2E&R 103374 102753 191 @ 2889 - 609740 84503
Changes in equity for the year: FEEREEY:

Profit for the year REEER 9 - - - - - SR Y1/ N (V1))

Other comprehensive income h2ERE - - - (984) - 4 - (936)
Total comprehensive income AEERENEAE

for the year - - - (984) - 4 76,172 75,836

Dividends approved in respect of FEERBERN L -5

the previous year MRS 27(b) i) - - - - - - (12405 (12405
Balance at 31 March 2013 W-%-Z§=B=1-BR

and | April 2013 ZE-ZEMA-BEH 103,374 102,753 2,91 (988) 26,869 48 674,101 908,454
Changes in equity for the year: FEERESD:

Profit for the year REEEF 9 - - - - - - M6 M85

Other comprehensive income i 2ERE - - - 40 6,282 (13) - 6,599
Total comprehensive income AEERANEAE

for the year - - - 440 6,282 (1) 345% 41,155
Transition to no-par value regime RZZ-ME=ZA=H

on 3 March 2014 BEEEAERGHE 7(0) 105044 (102753)  (291) - - - - -
Dividends approved in respect of TEEABERNL-FE

the previous year HRE 27(b)(ii) - - - - - - (10337)  (10337)
Balance at 3| March 2014 RZB-BEZR=t-A2&H 208,418 - - (548) 33,151 (15) 698,326 939,212
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. BRA& - EERKRE (&)
....... (€OMUNUED) s et
(b) Dividends (b) RE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () BHEXREGRERFEALXE
attributable to the year ERE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —E-=
$7000 $°000
Fr F
Final dividend proposed after the ~ R&H H B EFRIKE R
end of the reporting period of KRESRKREEROT
$0.03 (2013: $0.05) per (ZZE—=% :0.057)
ordinary share 6,202 10,337
The final dividend proposed after the end of the NEEARERRENKRE
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at REMARELEEIRIAE
the end of the reporting period. & o
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) AL REFEABR
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid LF—BEFE UTREEE
during the year BERZTHIRE
2014 2013
—E-mE —EB-=
$7000 $°000
Fr Frr
Final dividend in respect of the BRE-—SBEE
previous financial year, approved WRAFERERZM
and paid during the year of $0.05 REREBREBERR0.O5T
(2013: $0.06) per ordinary share (ZE—=%:0.067) 10,337 12,405
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

27. RE - RERKE (&

....... (SONBINUEA) || oottt certenties ettt
(c) Share capital (c) B&
2014 2013
=t ~E-c=F%
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
RG#E 2 RH#E E
Note ’000 $°000 000 $000
it & Fr & Fr
Authorised: EERA: i)
Ordinary shares of $0.50 each SREGBISTZEER (i) - - 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued BRAREBHRERR
and fully paid:
At | April REA-A 206,748 103,374 206,748 103,374
Transition to no-par value R=E-mE=A=H
regime on 3 March 2014 BEZREERGHE (iif = 105,044 - -
At 31 March W=A=t+-H 206,748 208,418 206,748 103,374
Notes: Kt
(i)  Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), (i) WRER-_ZT-EOFE=A=HA4%N

(iii)

which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of

authorised share capital no longer exists.

In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no
longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March
2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this

transition.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule || to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account and the capital redemption

reserve has become part of the Company’s share capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.

(iii)

ZHEBRTRG ($622F) -
EEREANMSTBFE

RER_-_Z-—NE=A=A4%
Mz HEBDAED (F622E)
B KATARBGTIBEER
HESEE - LEEHE TR
HEE REMBRRNBE R
WESE o

R-ZZ-NE=ZA=H &R
BRI BB D RRD (F6228)
B3R 1ISE374R OB R M 4R 3C
1% 40 728 8 AR &2 IR A T 120 R 4 Y
EAEF &S CHARDAR
K —ED -

EBEREAERBUETKEIR
MRS LEAERERQIFTRR
RELERER-FENLH2HE
RE - FIBEEBRERRQ A FER
EELYZERSEF -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share
premium account and the capital redemption reserve
was governed by sections 48B and 49H respectively
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32). In accordance with the transitional provisions
set out in section 37 of Schedule Il to the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March
2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account and the capital redemption reserve has
become part of the Company’s share capital (see note
27(c)). The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is
governed by the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note |(u).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in notes |(f) and (k).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for land and buildings set out in note

I (h) (i)

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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27. RE - RERKRE (&)

d) RENEERAR

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BRGEERKEELRFE
R-ZE-NWE=ZA=ZBH
Al RO EERRERAER
HENAEDBIZEAES
A FMER (5532F) 5548B1K
REBAHEFRE - BBR
—E-WE=ZA=H4&¥%=z
& B D AMED (F622F)
MY 2RI EE3745R (9 3B B 1 15
X RO RERERARER
RBENTAEREER B
BREQNRREIN—HBD (2
B aE27(c) cR=ZZ—
F=ZA=ZAUE  BRENA
BEEHEB QTG (5
622F) IR E °

ELZ#E
ERFEEERRETEN
INEB 2P BHREMEEZ
FrEEREZ5 - ZMHETIR
BRI T8 2 B R
BB

REEZHE
RESGHFEBESNEER
BEUHEERERSF QT
BEENRIEEE  WRIE
B KRR () R (kB & 5T I
R o

REEMHEBE AR KT
AARREFEA -

ITHRIETFTERGFE
AATERI LT HRET
EMMHE EREREMGL
WREFAEANETH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash

flow hedges in note I(g).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund.
According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations applicable to enterprises with
foreign investment, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of a dividend.

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available

for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,

as calculated under the provisions of section Part 6 of the

new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), was
$422,814,000 (2013: $424,562,000). After the end of the

reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend

of $0.03 (2013: $0.05) per ordinary share, amounting to
$6,202,000 (2013: $10,337,000). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

27. RE - RERKRE (&)

EENEER AR (E)

v) EHFEE
HHhRECSEARRESR
B hHE T B 2 A MER
PHAFEBERNFEE
MZBEERBE TESEHE
BREFARMFIQRERE
N ESTHCR MR o

vi) B E
HitEEREZERERES -
RIEAEBRPE M B LD
AzAEBERME  HEA
AAERARBEANRINE
EZHEETRAREA
BEZMANZZDIRE L
EREES BEEHELS
EEFMERZ50%%5 Lk °
OZEEMEFERSELED
Be Bk 2 ATEE ©

(e) AIHAIRFEE

R-E-mWE=Z=F=+—8"
REBEFE B D ARM (Fe22E)
FeMFE AQRAAHES KT
KARREFEEANREGLEERE
£422,814,000c (ZE—=F:
424,562,0007) - REER®Z - &
EEBRBEARAREEREER
0037t (ZZF—=%:0.057) *
& 56,202,000t (ZE—=F:
10,337,0007t) - ZBREREER
HARERREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i—/\

E—NFE=ZA=+—RHLLFE (&)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less
cash and cash equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits).
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from the previous financial year, was to
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 3| March 2014 and 2013, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing loans and

borrowings.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-_T-ME=ZA=1T—RLLFE (KETiT)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investment in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions which management believes

are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount and for all new customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due between 30 to
120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 10.5% (2013: 10.3%) and 30.1%
(2013: 39.3%) of the total trade debtors was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the manufacture and sale of garments and

textiles segment.

28. MIBEAKMEEREMIAZAF
FEBSEEEEBEBREFHBEE
E-RBESTIIERR - KAEBIT
ATREBHEMBEEESRENRER
B AEEAHZERRERESAEE
AREBEREKR M ERREER
REAEFEHMAMT

() FERR
rEENEERREERBRT
TFRREWERRRE MBI
EEECEREERE  LAEF
HERMAZEERBNEE -

RERRBITZ2ERMS  £&
BREEEERAREERFEN
RzEBRTHMBBILER -

MEWERRREMERRTS -
AEFBHERBB-—ESBEEE
ENFEREFEMEHEFYE
EATE B BT o RFMEFR
REFBIHMNIABREZRESE
REEBARzEED  UREED
EFZEBENREFEEME
ith 2 EEIRIE o EUBR XTI ER
B RAMEI0Z 1208 REH - K&
E-RIAEEEFERKFR -

TEBEASHNEARRBEE
TREEFNENGEMEE
RERBEBAREEFHNEREE
REEERBENEFEREX
EREEE BEFEENITER
ERWENRBEEARKEE
FE G OREERE -NEEH -
rEBEETORRBHEREE
RBFERKRSBREEPINE
REFHNAERBAEFEWIRR
ZIERBEBEREDHNI0.5% (=
T—=F:103%) &30.1% (=&
— =% :393%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

()

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company
as set out in note 30, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s derivative financial instruments, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can

be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(©

The Group and the Company

2014
= S

Contractual Contractual
undiscounted  undiscounted

cash inflow cash outflow

ANLRRAN ANLRERH

28. HEAMEEREMTIAZAY
BfE (&)

(b) RBEERR (H)

AEERAERAT
013
-g-:
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash inflow cash outflow

SNLARRN RNLAERH

BERA BERd BERA RenL
within | year ~ within | year Carrying amount within | year within | year  Carrying amount
orondemand  orondemand  on3l March oron demand or on demand on 31 March
R=A=1-A RZA=t-8
-FRIREX  -FRARER LBEE -FREEER  -FRUREX ZEHE
§000 §000 $000 $000 $000 §000
fr fr fr fr fr i

Derivative financial instruments held ~—~ FEEREREHHIA

as cash flow hedging instruments iTESRIA 1,940 (23,019) (19) 2468 (2416) 5

Save as the above, the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities are repayable within one year or on demand and
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow of these financial
liabilities equals their carrying values on the statement of

financial position.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds
Sterling, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange
rate. However, management acknowledges that the Group
is exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

BrEXCPREiSN » REBEADT
ZEMBESR-—FARFTRE
HEREE RZEEREES
A ERFHREOE SR B EI A
MR FTREBREEARR -

(c) E¥ER
rEBSRNEKREBEERE
FEEKMTRMEERE UMW
FRMNETENEERSEE
WEWERN BHERRARREE
BRoSIBULERBNERETES
BME -EZET EE -BIRAR
HE o

MABTEETHE  AEER
MEr BrEXRIFEEEKR
RE R EEERR KK
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Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Forecast transactions

At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge
its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales, excluding those transactions
denominated in USD which are, or are expected to be,
entered into by operations with a functional currency of
HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy
as the Group currently considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be

insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its currency risk and classifies these as cash flow hedges.
All of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of
less than one year after the end of the reporting period.
At 31 March 2014, both the Group and the Company
had forward exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of $79,000 (liabilities)
(2013: $52,000 (assets)), recognised as derivative

financial instruments (see notes 21 and 23).

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the

spot rate at the year end date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

E¥E bk (A)

(i) REZEWELE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. BIEREEREHIEZAF
BE (&)

AEZMBER (hER)
2014 003
ZZ-QF ZB-zE
United Hong United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds  States Kong
Sterling  Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Dollars  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi  Dollars
i %in  EE ARE  Ex  ®E  En EE ARE®  #n
$000  $'000  $000  $000  $000 000 $000  $000 000 $000
i Ffx  fi  fx  fx  fr fr  fr T fr
The Group 158
Trade and other receivables FEUER 3R M Z Mo83205 1,083 6 3045 %9 8% il 3
Cash and cash equivalents B2 REEEEY 567,639 865 53,678 3510 7T Mg B
Trade and other payables BT RFR L MEMH (576) (38,130) (1,361)  (585) - (B @am) i) () -
Amounts due from/(to) B/ (Ef) £
group companies G 6,950  (3,579) - -9 1me (3560 - - 45403
Amount due to a joint Eff-aEb¥RE
venture - (13) - - - - (13) - - -
Net exposure arising RECEIZER
from recognised assets BENMBERAETE
and labilties 6,483 109,212 57 S3IS5  I2,250 21391 124981 6937 B0 48129
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—NF=A=1—HLFE (UETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. BIEREEREHIEZAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(E&)
....... (oMU ) e e,
(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) E¥mEK (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) AZFZEEERE(E)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ES PR EACS: )
2014 003
zg-ms %%
United United
Pounds States Pounds States
Sterling  Dollars Euros Renminbi  Sterling Dollars Euros  Renminbi

¥ xn BE AR® 2§ X RE ARE
$000  $000  $000  $000 S000 000 $000  $000
fr.  fx  fx1 7z fr.  fr  fr Iz

The Company AAF
Trade and other receivables EUESREMEYR M 58610 4 6l 2135 5001 4145 29
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN 5 41,064 602 52,114 101 4TI B 30870
Trade and other payables ERRIREBEMT (576)  (15168)  (633) ®) (4n)  (154) (552) )
Amounts due froml(to) B/ (B EBARHE

group companies 6,950  (3,579) - - 1718 (3,561) - -
Amount due to a joint venture Rfi-cEt¥nE - (13) - - - 3) - -
Net exposure arising RECEIEER

from recognised assets BENERRERE

and labilities 6483 80914 12 52,167 2391 558 434 318
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-_ZT-—NME=ZA=+—8IFE (UE T

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD
and the USD would be materially unaffected by any

changes in movement in value of the USD against other

currencies.

28. BIEREEREHIEZAF
BE (&)

(c) E¥mEK (&)

(iii) BREE 5 HT
TRIITAER 2 BB E G
MRRERF) ARGEE
FEXZREAEEE (K
SEARLBHEAZIERER
) MEEZHEES I
EREZEMER T
RUMS  AEEREST
BEETCHEEETIGHEE
THEME Y 2 EE 2 EM
BETNEATE -

The Group
LS 1
2014 2013
—g-mE —g-=%
Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit  Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange rates

retained profits

exchange rates

retained profits

HEHRRAR HEHARFR

Ext#/(TH)  REENZ¥E EZLA/(ThH)  REEN<PE

% $7000 % $000

IFi1 Fr 1 Fr

Pounds Sterling %4 5% 271 5% 893
(5)% (271) (5)% (893)

Euros BE 5% 25 5% 29
(5)% (25) (5)% (290)

Renminbi ARE 8% 3,551 8% 2,35
(8)% (3,551) (8)% (2,356)

Hong Kong Dollars B 8% 135 8% 2,888
(8)% (735) (8)% (2,888)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ZE_E-WE=ZA=+—RIEFE (LB

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(c) Currency risk (continued)

28. HEAMEEREMTIAZAY
BE &

(c) E¥mEK (&)

(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the

end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2013.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note |9).

The listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance against

expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-
annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long

term strategic plans.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt &H BA ¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(d) Equity price risk (continued)

At 31| March 2014, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of
10% (2013: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and

retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity

28. IEBEEREMIAEZAY
BE (&)

as follows:

KRERE (&)
R=ZZE—NE=A=+—H ' &
HREMEBHERTE WEBER

EmiG (EHRE) BEEMH
DI0%(ZB—=45:10%) * 5T
MR AREB K REE R
M (BRRBEF) R EERE Mt
HEREBT

The Group
A5
2014 2013
“8-mE “E-zf
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other profit after other
tax and components tax and components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
HER&ENR BELE HBEREENR BEL
REEN 2% E ipPA REEH 258 Eibrd s
% $§000 $000 % $000 $000
A7l r 7 arkt Fr F
Change in relevant stock ~~ EZF 574
market index: £8.
Increase EMm 10% - 50 10% - (14)
Decrease By (10)% - (50) (10)% - 14
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in BREINER  BRERTEH

the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is assumed that the fair values of
the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index, that none of the Group’s listed available-for-
sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of
the decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on

the same basis for 2013.

RREFSAEAKERERE S
MIAE MZEIASAEER
FHEHAARZRERR HAEAS
B2 R EER (RREEF) R
RERSNHEHMROEEERZ
MREE TRREAEERER
EZAVEESRBERTER
ZERBEBEMESE  Hitv@
FRETE  AEENTHEE
FHREFERRTIEHT KM
ZEFBERE - ZEDNIRE
—E--FHRZEEET-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WWF=RA=+—HILFE (L&)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(e) Fair value measurement
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair

value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value

28. BIEREEREHIEZAF
BE (&)

(e) AFEEE

() HAFEET;TENEHIA
AT EEBR
TRIEREBRAABL
EMMREEBERAFE
B ENESBMIE > WRIE
(BB HREEANE I35
[RAFEEFTZIIREN

measurement. AFEEBRSEA=EAR
Bl o
The Group and the Company
FRERAAH
Fair value measurements Fair value measurements
as at 3| March 2014 asat 3| March 2013
categorised into categorised into
R-3-p% RZZ-ZF
ZRZt-RATEE ZAZt-ROTEE
HESER HEHER
Fair value Fair value
at 31 March at 31 March
2014 Level | Level 2 2013 Level | Level 2
R=B-m% RZE-Zf%
ZA=1-H ZA=1-H
ZATEE -85 EZH/H  20VEE Z-33 £ZR5
5000 5000 5000 $000 $000 $000
i i i 7z 7z r
Recurring fair value EEENTEE
measurements it
Assets: BE:
- Listed available-for- -IREELD
sale equity RS
securities 4,581 4,581 - 4274 4274 -
- Derivative financial -KEERERE
instruments held BhIRzfTE
as cash flow $RIE
hedging instruments - - - 52 - 52
Liabilities: 8f:
- Derivative financial -HEERERE
instruments held HHIEziTE
as cash flow SRIA
hedging instruments 19 - 19 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—WF=RA=+—HILFE (L ET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, there
were no transfers between Level | and Level 2. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
in Level 2 are marked to market by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the forward
rate at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used is derived from the prevailing market interest

rate at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2014 and 2013.

28. BIEREEREHIEZAF
BE (&)

(e) AFEEEE (A

()

(i)

BAFEETENEHTA
(#)

R-F-MNER=-F—=F
=A=1+—-HLtEER I
RESMIARESIHKABIH
FURBI 2 EIEER - B
EEzBX EATEER
BlBEEBBEEREER TN
R

RAREZRE 2 -FEME
BRI EF R AT HHIE
EMHIESHATEE(E
R DI RENERE
% WREEBMBRRTH
EHER - BRRDIBRRN
FEERTHSANRMmE

==

£ °

R FEEIRZE/HT
AZRAFEHE

AEBRAATGR-_Z—N
ER-ZEBE-=F=ZA=+-—
B LA AR 74 B 4 48 68 A A B BR
WemIAEENFEEL
BERER -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 A |

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3§

143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-ME=A=1t—HLFE LETH)

29. COMMITMENTS . 2 IE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 not @ RZIE—MWOE=A=+-—H8 1}
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RIE ISR AE B BB 2 E AR
BT
The Group The Company
rEHE ERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-pmE ZT-= —2-pmE —F-=
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
The Group’s capital commitments: FEEYELRE
Contracted for 24 5,973 258 - -
The Group’s share of the capital FEFLEELFE
commitments of joint ventures: HEXRLE -
Contracted for EHES 1,007 - = -
6,980 258 - -

(b) At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments b) RZE—NF=A=+—H &
BTIUBRNEEHEESNER

BRENHNRENEEENRERL

in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

BT :
The Group
TEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
$°000 $000
F F
The Group’s operating lease AEFREETHEFRIE -
commitments:
Within | year —FR 2,671 1,401
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFER 1,358 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBRAFR 3,235 -
After 5 years hFE#E 1,128 -
8,392 1,401
The Group’s share of the operating REE LS ELFER
lease commitments of joint ventures: HEHERE
Within | year —FR 524 610
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 56 17
580 627
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-E—ME=A=t—AILEE (ETH)

(b) (continued)
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to six years (2013: one to three years),
with an option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

30. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its
wholly owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any
of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is the total
amount of facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period amounted to $1,701,000 (2013: $2,391,000).

The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil consideration.
The transactions were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities and

measured at fair value.

29. FIE (&)

=

(b) (%
TEBABERKEHEREN
MENAEBAN BLEHEE—RY
SRP-—ERF(ZE—=F:—
E=F) THEEEEREIHA
BESR ERAERIEGTEN
BE -FMEHESHNLFEER
e

30. REEERERE

2R ENMBRR

REER AARERETE2ENE
ANEERFZRITRERRITIRMEE
RO BETIAR T HRBIBEME
REARBIREHEFR « RDBAE
EARRERENESEGRMBALAR
REZEBHSIZMI,701,000tER (==
— =% :2,391,0007T) °

HAABBH 2 ERILENAE - L3F
ERZXZUTEREETBSTER
EIRREERZETEMFFHEER
S2AVEE AEZEERTSHE
RUBEERTRAFEETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31.

BEEEALIZEAXRS

BREAMBRREMBTIEE 2R
S REGRI  AEEET LT EKRE
BALTRS:

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions:

(a) Transactions with YGM Trading Limited and its (a) EYGMEZERATRENBEA

subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”’) ATYGMTEE] 2R 5
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —E-=
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
Purchases of garment products BERXER 208 90
Sales of garment products HEMKER 27,165 32,868
Rental income received and receivable SRR ERERS WA 5,194 5,195
Management fee received and receivable B WK EWNEEE 804 804
Building management fee received EURREREFERE
and receivable 324 324
Note: Kiat :

YGMTEBzE TESERESE2HE
ATRBFEABYGMTEBE R AEE 2 #
BRRE-FHI  YGMTEE A A EE
ZBEAL -

YGMT Group is related to the Group as certain directors and their
associates are collectively the controlling shareholders of both YGMT
Group and the Group.

(b) Transactions with other related parties

(b) HMBEAEALTZRS

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
Note $°000 $°000
KraE Fr F
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. BERIBEHEHBERAAE ()
Purchases of raw materials BERER 14,774 14,135
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial ERAREBEERAA
Company Limited (i)
Sales of garment products HERKEM - 11,523
Notes: Kta -
()  Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of () EFRIBEHBERLIANALEER

ZEECEEH -RREARIAZ

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the

Group. TEHEEWELT -
(i)  Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial Company Limited is an associate of (i) ERAEBEXEERLADAEEE 2B
the Group. QT e

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EL3 KA WA W
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 43§

146



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31.

(c) Balances due from/(to) related companies, joint

BEBEALIZEAXRS (&)

(c) BY/(ER)BELE &k

ventures and associates: ERBEATRE:
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —E-=F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Amount due from YGMT Group FEWYGMTEEBE R 1E 845 2,490
Amount due to YGMT Group BN YGMTE B FIE (3,614) (1,120)
Amount due to WTCO07 Holdings FE{FWTCO7 Holdings
Pte Ltd. Pte Ltd. 57X 18 (324) (363)
Amount due from Allied Textiles R ST Bt B 4 4 B PR
Co., Ltd. DNEFHRE 1,513 1,475
Amount due to Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. 3T E 4 BB R A R IE (13) -
Amount due to Wuxi Flex Textile ENEGERHG AR
Co., Ltd. BRABRE 0) (148)
Amount due from Wuxi YGM Textile BRESRIBEHE
Co., Ltd. BRDBHREA 427 -
Amount due from Guangdong Xi Mu EWERABEEGR
Industrial Company Limited N EIFRIE 17 -
Amount due to Guangdong Xi Mu ENERABREXER
Industrial Company Limited NRRIE (220) (199)
Notes: Ktat -

WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. is related to the Group as it is held by a

director of the Group.

(d) Transactions with key management personnel (d)
All members of key management personnel are the directors
of the Company, and their remuneration is disclosed in note
7.

WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd.FAZxSE @ —
LESHA o FE Lk - WTC07 Holdings
Pte Ltd AARNEB 2 BEAL -

FTREEABNRS
FEXTEEBAEBYARERARZ
EE  ESMECTRME7RE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F-ME=A=+—RLFE WETH)

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Write-down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and,
management experience and judgment. Based on this review,
a write-down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimations
and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be
affected by differences in these estimations. The write-down
and reversal of write-down of inventories are disclosed in
note 20.

(b) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
I(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
are changed. The deferred tax assets not recognised in
respect of cumulative tax losses are disclosed in note 25(c).

(c) Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties requires various
assumptions and factors relevant to the valuation. The
Group engages independent professional qualified valuers
to conduct an annual revaluation of the Group’s investment
properties based on assumptions agreed between the Group
and the valuers prior to adoption. The details of valuation of
investment properties are disclosed in note |3(c).

(d) Provision for long service payments

The Group makes provision for lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC. The payments
due are dependent on future events and recent payment
experience may not be indicative of future payments. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect the profit
or loss in future years. The details of long service payments
are disclosed in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E-B-ME=A=+—RIFE (LET)

33. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

At 31 March 2014, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd, which is incorporated in the Cayman

Islands.

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not
yet effective for the year ended 3| March 2014 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group.

33. EERBRERAL
RZZE-NF=ZA=1+—-H EER
AEAEEzEERRRERALTS

Chan Family Investment Corporation

Ld (REASHBEMMIL) ©

34. REBE-ZE—NE=ZA=+—H
tEECEMAEERERNE
Al HEARBEUREEKRNE
2=l

EEAUBERER2H  FBES
MASEEMETHR-_Z-—NE=A
=t-BLEEEERERNETR—
EHER - MABRRILRERMN
R HhEARAKENERNT °

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on BNl
or after REAEN
Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial BEBETENENKE]) 2HEE | January 2014 “Z-MmE-A-H
assets and financial liabilities REFEEH LY
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives ERGTERER(ER) T4£IA | January 2014 —Z-mE-A-H
and continuation of hedge accounting EERYHEN EZEE
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BRVEREERNESE 2T A Unspecified o REE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the Company’s first financial year commencing after
3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial year which began on |
April 2014) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and

disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements.

REBRIEENMGE LMERETRE
RERPBERFEENSE - BE
BATAL AEERRRMNZEER
BIHGEMBHRRALBEALE -

teoh - ARIBFE B D BRD (F622F)
583581k - FIMBRIIRE RETIZ
REBRALAR-ZE-—ENFE=ZA=
ARzEEVRFER(DEAQTNZ
E-NMENA-HRRZMBFE) &
Mo AREBMREREBLAERN 28
EHESUBHRRE B RAEIRDE
BTG -BAEFZERBETR
AHREEARNE AURBITELER
BUBHBREHMZERRIKE -
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GROUP PROPERTIES

RIS

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows:

FEBERMEERFIIWT ¢

Location it B Existing use A% Term of lease HEFH
Major properties held for investment

BERERBCEENE

The whole building BH Commercial [GE3 Medium-term FEIEA
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street NEEH A

San Po Kong, Kowloon REH22 - 245

Hong Kong 210

Units 10C3, 10D and I0EI on level 10 FEARLNE Commercial [ Medium-term HHIE R
Junyao International Plaza LEmHER

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road B E B89

Xuhui District, Shanghai City HEEARES

The People's Republic of China B JT10C3, 10DK I0E|

Unit 1505 — 1508 on level 15 HEARLMNE Commercial [iEES Medium-term HHIFE K
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
FFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTET)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—2-%% ZT--% C"T--fF CZT-=f%f ZCZB-QNF
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Results ES |
Turnover HER 1,310,042 1,416,250 1,750,673 1,333,068 1,074,132
Profit,/(loss) from operations meRk/ (BE) 20,703 26,221 82,233 39,273 (8,499)
Finance costs MEMRAK (5,634) (5,695) (5,799) (4,398) (3,860)
Share of profits less losses of ELEE ARG RREE
associates 1,306 484 (192) (398) (220)
Share of profits less losses of BiragtEafiEse
joint ventures 34237 72,594 7,522 (4,821) 18,515
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEM B A & K& FE - 1,808 - - -
Gain on disposal of a former associate & ATH & 2 7] W& - 293 - - -
Impairment losses on interest in HENRRRRERAEE
associate and dividend receivable AERREZHESE
from a former associate (BR)/BE
(recognised),/reversed (7,914) 7914 - - -
Impairment losses on fixed assets EEEEREREM®R)/ BE
(recognised),/ reversed (21,014) 5,498 - (8,504) (6,935)
Gain on disposals of land and HETHREFR
buildings and investment properties R EYE W& 81,133 - - - -
Net valuation gains on investment REMEGENEFE
properties 20,915 20,298 33392 44,905 19,257
Profit before taxation BRE AR 123,732 129,415 117,156 66,057 18,258
Income tax FRE®R (17,633) (15,829) (12,823) (10,311) (7,059)
Profit for the year REERAF 106,099 113,586 104,333 55,746 11,199
Attributable to : ERER
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIREHFHE A 105,932 113,053 103,159 53,082 11,920
Non-controlling interests FERRRESR 167 533 1,174 2,664 (721)
Profit for the year REERR 106,099 113,586 104,333 55,746 11,199
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

FFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L ETET)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—F-%F ZF--% CZT--F ZF-=F ZEF-QOF
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Fixed assets EEEE 189,987 208,102 272,789 303,109 305,346
Intangible assets BREE 1,569 1,569 3,117 3,117 3,117
Goodwill EES - - - - -
Interests in associates BENRER - 203 16 2,096 1,912
Interests in joint ventures RELEER 513,133 610,400 611,270 610,118 638,810
Prepayment for fixed assets EEEERAR - 3273 789 870 -
Other financial assets HihepERE 5,820 7,854 8,079 7,069 7,381
Deferred tax assets BEFREHEE 17,301 17,974 11,328 2,454 2,403
Net current assets RBEEFR 293,484 299,246 362,702 375,052 363,221
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERTDAR 1,021,294 1,148,621 1,270,090 1,303,885 1,322,190
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE (39.,879) (45,181) (47,886) (31,958) (34,898)
Net assets EEFE 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204 1,271,927 1,287,292
Share capital and other statutory RAREMGEEERHE
capital reserves 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418
Other reserves Hi G 771,770 893,345 1,010,707 1,055,602 1,071,598
Total equity attributable to equity EREERANRRE
shareholders of the Company BEAEREE 980,188 1,101,763 1,219,125 1,264,020 1,280,016
Non-controlling interests FERRRESR 1,227 1,677 3,079 7,907 7,276
Total equity BRAH 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204 1,271,927 1,287,292
Per share basis IEREE
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERT HK$0.50 HK$0.54 HK$0.49 HK$0.26 HK$0.06
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